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2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee - Human Resources Division 
Sakakawea Room, State Capitol 

HB1005 
1/8/2019 

30564 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk: Caitlin Fleck  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Overview  
 

Minutes:                                                 A 

 
Begin with introduction and name of bill.  
 
Scott Davis, Executive Director of the North Dakota Indian Affairs Commission: (see 
attachment A)  
(10.10) Introduce staff and explanation of employment position  
-Brad Hawk, American Indian Health Systems Administrator 
-Erica Thunder, Judicial Systems Administrator  
-Marietta Kemmet, Executive Administrative Assistant to the Executive Director 
-Leah McCloud, Data Specialist, PTE 
 
(13.45) Chairman Jon O. Nelson: One of the things we did in the last session is the 
coordinated plan discussion, what is the progress with the discussions in this tribal nations 
in that area?  
 
(14.45) Mr. Hawk: It’s been a long process so far, we started discussions with Standing Rock 
Sioux tribe because they have an ND and a SD tribe and they have already gone through 
this process with the SD side. We decided to start with them to see what they say. We 
discussed with Sanford Health and St. Alexus as the main providers, and have agreements 
with these two foundations. There are discussions about sharing information and if the 
provider here will be able to communicate back to the representative in the HIS facility. 
There’s discussion about how the Medicaid claim will come back to the services. There is a 
bill being presented that will discuss how the money will be split out and distributed.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Do you have a bill number?  
 
Mr. Hawk: No, but representative Kaiser is carrying the bill  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: I will speak with him.  
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(20.22) Mr. Davis: (Back to attachment A)  
 
(27.45) Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Do you have a spreadsheet of the businesses 
established?  
 
Mr. Davis: yes, we have a huge spreadsheet of everything appropriated to every business. 
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Include the employees that helped with this too. 
 
Mr. Davis: We will get that to you. 
 
(28.45) Mr. Davis: (back to attachment A)  
 
(31.42) Vice Chairman Gary Kreidt: Is the youth leadership academy (60,000) included in 
your operating expenses? Will that be continued this summer?  
 
Mr. Davis: Yes, and yes. 
 
Discussed future meeting times and closed meeting. 



2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee - Human Resources Division 
Sakakawea Room, State Capitol 

HB1005 
1/21/2019 

31080 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk: Caitlin Fleck  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Detailing the budget.  
 
 

Minutes:                                                 A,B 

 
Took Roll.  
 
Scott Davis, Executive Director of the ND Indian Affairs Commission: (See attachment 
A)  
 
(3.15) Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Talk about some of the accomplishments or goals of the 
business office?  
 
Mr. Davis: The office of development spurred to increase productivity throughout the 
reservation lands. IT’s mainly about private sector jobs on and off the reservation. We have 
also created a ND Indian Business Alliance (IBA). It is an alliance to go to for help when in 
need of funding. We also partner with other foundations and other IBAs. It is a good place to 
go for funding for certain businesses. We are governed by our own Indian Alliance board.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Could you provide us that directory? 
 
Mr. Davis: Yes.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: That would be good information to have, because I’m sure there 
are some that I don’t even know exist.  
 
Mr. Davis: Another goal that we have is to identify how to do business on the tribe. There 
are a lot of different rules that may be seen as risky from a banking side. Some of our tribes 
need some help and equity and we work to make that happen. We make sure that these 
tribes that want to gain funding have their UCC code in place.  
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(10.58) Chairman Jon O. Nelson: So the 5% reduction the governor asked for is out of this 
tribal fun. Are you going to be able to regain that or how is that going to go forward with that 
reduction?  
 
Mr. Davis: We have an executive director that serves for that position. I think that we are 
going to cut that position to part time or even half time. Having it be full time may not be the 
best use for that position. I think that it could be better used as half time or even quarter time. 
I think we will be ok with that reduction.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: There really isn’t much of a difference I don’t think. The 4% that 
the governor suggested I think will go down to a 2 and 2%.  
 
Mr. Davis: If any of you have been in business before, you know that it is hard to find and 
keep good employees. The benefit packages and raises are crucial for that too. I understand, 
but we have to have those benefit packages in place or else the employees are going to go 
other places instead. These are things that a degree will not teach. We learn so much during 
session, about people, and laws and codes and the way the government is run.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: You lost an FTE last session, can you tell us what the individual 
did and how you were able to downsize with that and continue to serve your people?  
 
(18.15) Mr. Davis: Through the allotment process, we had to identify another allotment and 
decided to look at the education section. We looked at what Department of Public Instruction 
(DPI) does and figured that there could be some redundancy there with my education full 
time employee (FTE). We had that discussion of redundancy and duplication of services, we 
had to cut that FTE. We are doing fine with that. The education through DPI is running just 
fine and we are working well with that. We have one of the most lean budgets in the state, 
but also one of the most challenging offices to take care of.  
 
(22.28) Chairman Jon O. Nelson: I think that it should be recognized that of all the areas of 
expertise that you have talked about this morning, you’ve never once talked about 
engineering. I think that with your bridge building, you have impressed many of us here in 
this session. I think that the footings in our relationship are very solid, and I thank you for 
your leadership in that.  
 
Representative Richard G. Holman: I used to teach the North Plains Indian studies core 
course for teachers. Many people don’t understand that we have different histories and 
different tribes, and that ceremony last week identifies that. With 9% of our state being tribal 
members, I think that is a significant part of our population. Thank you for any part that you 
had in that ceremony.  
 
Vice Chairman Gary Kreidt: You talked about temporary employment in your budget, I’d 
assume that you pull that out of your salaries, what is that number for that temporary 
employee?  
 
Mr. Davis: I always hire a temporary position during this time. Larry Martin, OMB, is really 
good at helping us with that and being honest with us as to what we can do and what we 
can’t do.  
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Vice Chairman Gary Kreidt: So do you have that temporary position all year around?  
 
Mr. Davis: No she works about 30 hours a week and we’re hoping that she can stay for the 
rest of session.  
 
Vice Chairman Gary Kreidt: Do you have the number?  
 
Larry Martin, Office of Management and Business: In the current request, it is 30,800 for 
the whole biennium. 
 
Vice Chairman Gary Kreidt: So what the governor is proposing, is about a 30,000 increase 
in your salary line, so the temp would eat up your 30,000 increase? 
 
Mr. Martin: The 34,000 increase is just a comp package, the 30,000 is still in the budget.  

 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: What is your perspective as to the importance of the 10% 
transfer?  
 
Mr. Davis: I think that with that transfer authority, for the small agency I don’t think it will 
make or break anything. I could see how it would really help some of the larger agencies. I 
see how that is beneficial to do some of that within the agency.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: In your office, if there is a project that goes outside the line of the 
budget, how would you see that transfer of 10% help you in your particular office?  
 
Mr. Martin: I could see that if they had an employee leave, and they couldn’t hire another 
one, they’d have to contract the position out. Their lines are so tight that they would have to 
transfer funds from salaries to operating to cover a contract services. In the current 
environment, they would have to go to an emergency commission and get approval to do 
that transfer. Whereas if they had that authority in their bill, they could have the authority to 
do that transfer up to 10% without having to go to an emergency commission to be approved.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Can you think of an example where there isn’t a staffing change?  
 
Mr. Martin: If they had some extra money in the salary line, and maybe they wanted to 
contract another person to do some data work they could make that transfer to operating to 
do that.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: And under the existing circumstances, they could do that if they 
went to the emergency commission?  
 
Mr. Martin: Yes, the language that we put into the bill is similar to the legislative side and the 
judicial side. We are just trying to get everyone up to that same level or transfer authority.  
 
Vice Chairman Gary Kreidt: Have you ever had to go to the emergency commission, and 
was that a severe hardship?  
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Mr. Davis: No, I’ve never had to go. We have a running check book that we do monthly. I go 
back to our audits and how we do things.  
 
Vice Chairman Gary Kreidt: You mentioned that we do have some budgets that already 
have this 10% transfer authority?  
 
Mr. Martin: Yes.  
 
Vice Chairman Gary Kreidt: Can we get a list of those?  
 
Mr. Martin: Yes, I will get you that.  
 
(35.54) Representative Randy A. Schobinger: The last green sheets that I have are of 
January 8, and there wasn’t any major legislation out there that would affect your, is there 
anything out there now?  
 
Mr. Davis: As of now, no. There is nothing that would heavily impact us. We have made the 
appropriate steps, and are still here being good stewards of people’s money.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: There is a bill regarding the shared savings of the coordinated 
care agreement which would capture 100% federal medical assistance percentage (FMAP) 
if a tribe had a coordinated care agreement with a healthcare facility for that care. And in the 
event of a transfer to that facility, the department would be able capture 100% of that FMAP 
for that care. The reason we went into that arrangement would be to fund the cost for 
expanded Medicaid. Some states have done this and provided some money to the agency. 
Now I think that bill would share some of the savings with the tribes, that may have some 
consequences when getting to the human services side of things. Do you know where that 
is at in the process? 
 
(39.15) Mr. Davis: That FMAP is like a marriage. Without us ever expanding Medicaid 
coverage throughout the state, and now the tribal money that has come in from the federal 
government to help the tribes at 100%. Now we have a windfall of about 50%. With that 50%, 
the money that will come out of it, what will we do with that extra 50%? That’s where 
Representative Keizer has initiated this bill to allow to take the savings and escrow and share 
it 70/30 to the tribe and state, and all health related. A lot of tribes need help with treatment 
centers and dialysis chairs. This is something that the tribes have never had before but this 
is something new to the tribe members and could be beneficial to those that qualify for it.  
 
(42.41) Representative Lisa Meier: What are some of the issues with the native American 
youth?  
 
Mr. Davis: We have come to you guys to allocate money for a Native American youth 
leadership program. This will be our 10th year of doing that program. We have a large group 
of tribal youth groups in our state. There is a group that wants to do a state wide conference 
for the youth, not only the tribal youth but all youth.  
 
Representative Lisa Meier: Going forward with the youth, when are you looking at that 
conference happening? What would the participating rate be?  
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Mr. Davis: About June or July here in Bismarck and there would be a good turnout.  
 
Chris Kadrmas, Legislative Council: That bill that Chairman Nelson was talking about is 
HB1194. 
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Where is it at in the process? 
 
Mr. Kadrmas: It was heard on the 15.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: So they haven’t acted on it yet?  
 
Mr. Kadrmas: No.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Ok, I will look at that.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: One thing we would like to make you aware of, is that last week 
we have Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation (DOCR), and they are moving the 
women form New England to Missouri River Correctional Center (MRCC). We are in the 
process of taking a part of the population from MRCC and housing them in New England for 
a period of time. I am going to try to put together a conversation of industry and people down 
in that area. I would like to include you in that conversation due to the large amount of Native 
American inmates there to provide some job skills training in that facility. That part of the 
state has the most job openings, and the geography of South West ND could be used to their 
advantage. I would be interested in including you to find what industries would be best suited 
for employment for that area, and hopefully if this can be accomplished, we can repurpose 
that facility and train people for the jobs that may be open in the state.  
 
(48.41) Mr. Davis: Locally here we are working heavily on the services available. If we didn’t 
have services here like we do, then it would be tough to even get them. These types of 
services, healthcare services, are not available. We can easily have that conversation of that 
workforce development. It’s an investment on the industries part as well. I’ glad that both 
assemblies are trying to reinvent the area of incarceration. Giving people the opportunity to 
get certain felonies off their record will give people a chance to turn their life around. We are 
trying to get those people to be good tax paying members of society.  
 
(52.15) Chairman Jon O. Nelson: I appreciate that because I think that those skills that are 
needed for job growth is a win-win. That could really place New England in a stronger position 
as time goes on. If this is successful, I don’t think that it would make sense to move those 
men to the Jamestown facility because this is the area where most of the jobs exist in ND 
right now and I don’t think that is going to change in the next 6 years.   
 
NO FURTHER QUESTIONS OR TESTIMONY. 
REPRESENTATIVE BERT ANDERSON WILL CARRY THE BILL.  
MEETING CLOSED. 
 
ATTACHMENT B WAS EMAILED AND ATTACHED ON 1/23/2019. 
 

 



2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee - Human Resources Division 
Sakakawea Room, State Capitol 

HB1005 
2/1/2019 

32010 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk: Caitlin Fleck  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Taking amendments. 
 

Minutes:                                                 A 

 
Opened hearing.  
Took roll.  
 
Handed out attachment A.  
 
Sheila Sandness, Legislative Council: This is the worksheet that includes the executive 
recommendation, the changes from the executive, and the house budget in the middle. What 
is included in there is the base payroll changes, the effects of the 2&2, and the insurance 
package. That would add an increase of 17,811 to the base budget. The third column shows 
the differences in the house and recommended budgets. The house budget also doesn’t 
include the executive recommendation that was added.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: We would appreciate this type of diagram for all of our budgets. 
Do we need to adopt an amendment for that 2 & 2 salary change?  
 
Ms. Sandness: I would do that, just to have it on record. To be on the safe side I would 
include it in the wording and language.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: In full committee yesterday we had 1 budget where the executive 
recommendation was removed. Do we have to do that?  
 
Ms. Sandness: No, I think it was added in and then taken out in full committee. They had 
to take it out because there was an amendment added in. When you make changed to the 
bill, the middle column will change based on what you decide here.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Under the funding changes, Scott suggested the elimination of 
the Indian Affairs Business Office. In the governor’s recommendation suggested that also, 
do we still have to take that out?  
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Ms. Sandness: Yes. 
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: When we take that out, that would be a larger negative number 
than the executive budget?  
 
Ms. Sandness: Yes, because the salary increase would be lower, so if you decide to move 
that into the middle column, there would be a reduction.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: I’ll ask for a 2 & 2 salary increase for this budget, and a 
grandfathered in insurance package that we currently have. Are there any other 
amendments? If not, I would also ask for an amendment to remove the Indian Affairs 
Business Office.  
 
Larry Martin, Office of Management and Budget: You’re just talking the funding here?  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Yes.  
 
Vice Chairman Gary Kreidt: That would be a reduction of 35,144 because there is still 
some money left in there.  
 
Ms. Sandness: You would also include the base payroll changes?  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Yes. Any further amendments? None seen. Sheila will include 
the amendments we asked for on a worksheet and then we will vote on them.  
 
Representative Richard G. Holman: did you calculate the 2 & 2 yet?  
 
Ms. Sandness: It is in the middle column. Would you like us to prepare that sheet first, and 
them prepare the formal amendment?  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Yes. 
 
No further amendments. Meeting closed.   
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Appropriations Committee - Human Resources Division 
Sakakawea Room, State Capitol 

HB1005 
2/4/2019 

32067 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk: Caitlin Fleck  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Reviewing amendments.  
 
 

Minutes:                                                 A 

 
Opened hearing.  
Tool roll.  
 
Amendments were handed out (Attachment A).  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Did we decided to not go with section 2, the section that allowed 
for federal money to be in their budget, is that existing language?  
 
Chris Kadrmas, Legislative Council: That is new language.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: They didn’t have that ability in the past?  
 
Mr. Kadrmas: No, but every agency has the ability to go to the emergency commission.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Has every one had a chance to look at the worksheets? We will 
attempt to do this with one motion, instead of separately.  
 
Representative Randy A. Schobinger: Motion to move the amendments.  
 
Representative Lisa Meier: Seconded.  
 
Roll Call Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No, 1 Absent.  
 
Motion Carries.  

 
Vice Chairman Gary Kreidt: Moved Do Pass as amendment  
 
Representative Randy A. Schobinger: Seconded.  
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Roll Call Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No, 1 Absent.  
 
Motion carries.  
 
Floor assignment: Representative Bert Anderson  

 
Meeting concluded. 



2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 

HB 1005 
2/6/2019 

32273 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk Risa Bergquist 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Defraying the expenses of the Indian affairs commission. 

 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Delzer: Called HB 1005 to order 
 
Representative B. Anderson: Human Resources recommends approval of HB 1005, HB 
1005 has to do with the Indian Affairs Commission. Reviews the amendment 19.0193.01001. 
 
2:20 Representative B. Anderson: I make a motion to adopt amendment 19.0193.01001 
 
Representative J. Nelson: Second 
 
Chairman Delzer: Questions by the committee? If none we will do a voice vote.   
 
Voice vote was taken, All in Favor, motion carries  
 
Representative B. Anderson: Do pass as Amended 
 
Representative J. Nelson: Second 
 
Chairman Delzer: Further discussion? We will take a roll call vote.  
 
A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea:       20       Nay:       0      Absent:  1 
 
Motion Carries; Representative B. Anderson will carry the bill.  
 
Chairman Delzer: With that we will close this hearing.  
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19.0193.01001 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
the House Appropriations - Human Resources 
Division Committee 

Fiscal No. 1 February 4, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1005 

Page 1, replace lines 9 through 14 with: 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Total general fund 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Renumber accordingly 

Base Level 
$848,407 

263,704 
$1,112,111 

4.00 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

"Adjustments or 
Enhancements 

$17,811 
(35. 144) 

($17,333) 
0.00 

House Bill No. 1005 - Indian Affairs Commission - House Action 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Base 
Budget 

$848,407 
263,704 

$1,112,111 
0 

$1,112,111 

4.00 

House 
Changes 

$17,811 
(35,144' 

($17,333) 
0 

($17,333) 

0.00 

House 
Version 

$866,218 
228,560 

$1,094,778 
0 

$1,094,778 

4.00 

Department 316 - Indian Affairs Commission - Detail of House Changes 

Reduces 
Funding for 

Adjusts Adds Funding the American 
Funding for for Salary and Indian 
Base Payroll Benefit Business 

Changes1 lncreases1 Officei 

Total House 
Changes 

Salaries and wages ($20,462) $38,273 $17,811 
Operating expenses ($35,144) (35,144' 

Total all funds ($20,462) $38,273 ($35,144) ($17,333) 
Less estimated income 0 0 0 0 
General fund ($20,462) $38,273 ($35,144) ($17,333) 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1 Funding is adjusted for base payroll changes. 

Appropriation 
$866,218 

228,560 
$1,094,778 

4.00" 

2 The following funding is added for 2019-21 biennium salary adjustments of 2 percent per year and increases in 
health insurance premiums from $1,241 to $1,427 per month: 

Salary increase 
Health insurance increase 
Total 

General Fund 
$20,425 

17,848 
$38,273 

3 Reduces funding for the American Indian Business Office to provide a total of $64,856 . 

Page No. 1 19.0193.01001 
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19.0193.01002 
Title.02000 
Fiscal No. 1 

Adopted by the Appropriations Committee 

February 6, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1005 

Page 1, replace lines 9 through 14 with: 
II 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Total general fund 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Renumber accordingly 

Base Level 
$848,407 

263,704 
$1,112,111 

4.00 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Adjustments or 
Enhancements 

$17,811 
(35,144) 

($17,333) 
0.00 

House Bill No. 1005 - Indian Affairs Commission - House Action 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Base 
Budget 

$848,407 
263,704 

$1,112,111 
0 

$1,112,111 

4.00 

House 
Changes 

$17,811 
(35,144' 

($17,333) 
0 

($17,333) 

0.00 

House 
Version 

$866,218 
228,560 

$1,094,778 
0 

$1,094,778 

4.00 

Department 316 - Indian Affairs Commission - Detail of House Changes 

Reduces 
Funding for 

Adjusts Adds Funding the American 
Funding for for Salary and Indian 
Base Payroll Benefit Business 

Changes1 lncreases1 Office1 

Total House 
Changes 

Salaries and wages ($20,462) $38,273 $17,811 
Operating expenses ($35,144) (35,144) 

Total all funds ($20,462) $38,273 ($35,144) ($17,333) 
Less estimated income 0 0 0 0 
General fund ($20,462) $38,273 ($35,144) ($17,333) 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1 Funding is adjusted for base payroll changes. 

Appropriation 
$866,218 

228,560 
$1,094,778 

4.00" 

2 The following funding is added for 2019-21 biennium salary adjustments of 2 percent per year and increases in 
health insurance premiums from $1,241 to $1,427 per month: 

Salary increase 
Health insurance increase 
Total 

General Fund 
$20,425 
17,848 

$38,273 

3 Reduces funding for the American Indian Business Office to provide a total of $64,856. 

Page No. 1 19.0193.01002 
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Date: � }L//tltJJ 9 
Roll C all Vote #: _ __,'--_ 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. ltB/015 
House Appropriations - Human Resources Division 

D Subcommittee 

Committee 

Amendment LC# or Description: _ __,_/_91-'.'-"0�L--'9 ..... -3_,._0--'-/--=C(]=-=--=--/ ___ ___ _ ____ _ 

Recommendation: � Adopt Amendment 
D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 

Other Actions: 

D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider 

D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Seconded By �- MeAe.r 

Representatives Yes No Reoresentatives 
Chairman Jon 0. Nelson )( Rep. Richard G. Holman 
Vice Chairman Gary Kreidt 
Representative Bert Anderson 
Representative Lisa Meier 
Rep. Randy A. Schobinger X 

No 

Yes No 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) 5 ----------- -----------------

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

'rJ
u.4:,e. 

�,o\\ c}lo.ngef> \ {).'/. eou\orj 0

\'0C,<�e.s, ne.c.\� ·,<"\��once, 

re.c\ua. l\f<\e..ri can 'nd, O.'() � u5·, '()e.::)5 � ce. �c\ � <\ 5 · 
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Date: '9/f/,ROJ? 
Roll Call Vote #: ;/ 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILURESOLUTION NO. HRloa5 

House Appropriations - Human Resources Division Committee 

0 Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: -----------------------
Recommendation: O Adopt Amendment 

rjj' Do Pass O Do Not Pass O Without Committee Recommendation 
� As Amended O Rerefer to Appropriations 
0 Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: 0 Reconsider 0 

Motion Made By '£,
l\2

. \'wcid+ Seconded By ��- �b��eC 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes 
Chairman Jon 0. Nelson X Rep. Richard G. Holman X: 
Vice Chairman Gary Kreidt X 
Representative Bert Anderson 
Representative Lisa Meier x 
Rep. Randy A Schobinger X 

Total No 

No 

(Yes) ___:......__________ _._..__ ____________ _ 
Absent 

Floor Assignment '.\tie.� An6ex-sXYJ 
If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Date: 2/6/2019 
Roll C all Vote #: 1 

House Appropriations 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB 1005 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 19.0193.01001 

Committee 

-----------------------
Recommendation: � Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 

Other Actions: 

D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider 

D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By Representative B. Anderson Seconded By ___ R_ep._r_e_s _e_n_ta_ t_iv _e_J_._N_e_ls_o_ n __ 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Delzer 

Representative Kempenich 

Representative Anderson Representative Schobinger 
Representative Beadle Representative Vigesaa 
Representative Bellew 
Representative Brandenburg 
Representative Howe Representative Boe 
Representative Kreidt Representative Holman 

Representative Martinson Representative Mock 
Representative Meier 

Representative Monson 
Representative Nathe 
Representative J. Nelson 

Representative Sanford 

Representative Schatz 
Representative Schmidt 

No Total 

Absent 

(Yes) ----------- ----------------

Floor Assignment 

Voice Vote, Motion Carries 



Date: 2/6/2019 
Roll Call Vote #: 2 

House Appropriations 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB 1005 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 

Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 

Committee 

C8:I Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 

Other Actions: 

C8:I As Amended D Rerefer to Appropriations 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By Representative B. Anderson Seconded By Representative J. Nelson 

Representatives Yes No Representatives 
Chairman Delzer X 
Representative Kempenich X 
Representative Anderson X Representative Schobinger 
Representative Beadle X Representative Vigesaa 
Representative Bellew X 
Representative BrandenburQ A 
Representative Howe X Representative Boe 
Representative Kreidt X Representative Holman 

Representative Martinson X Representative Mock 
Representative Meier X 
Representative Monson X 
Representative Nathe X 
Representative J. Nelson X 

Representative Sanford X 
Representative Schatz X 
Representative Schmidt X 

Total 20 No 0 

Yes No 

X 
X 

X 
X 
X 

(Yes) ----------- ----------------
Absent 1 ------------------------------
Floor Assignment Representative B. Anderson 

Motion Carries 



Com Standing Committee Report 
February 8, 2019 8:58 AM 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_25_008 
Carrier: B. Anderson 

Insert LC: 19.0193.01002 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1005: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Delzer, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(20 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1005 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, replace lines 9 through 14 with: 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Total general fund 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Renumber accordingly 

Base Level 
$848,407 

263,704 
$1,112,111 

4.00 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Adjustments or 
Enhancements 

$17,811 
(35,144) 

($17,333) 
0.00 

House Bill No. 1005 - Indian Affairs Commission - House Action 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Base 
Budget 

$848,407 
263 704 

$1,112,111 
0 

$1,112,111 

4.00 

House 
Changes 

$17,811 
(35 144) 

($17,333) 
0 

($17,333) 

0.00 

Department 316 - Indian Affairs Commission - Detail of House Changes 

Reduces Funding 
Adjusts Funding Adds Funding for for the American 
for Base PaY,roll Salary and B�nefit Indian Business 

Changes Increases Office' 
Salaries and wages ($20,462) $38,273 
Operating expenses ($35,144) 

Total all funds ($20,462) $38,273 ($35,144) 
Less estimated income 0 0 0 
General fund ($20,462) $38,273 ($35,144) 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1 Funding is adjusted for base payroll changes. 

Appropriation 
$866,218 

228,560 
$1,094,778 

4.00" 

House 
Version 

$866,218 
228 560 

$1,094,778 
0 

$1,094,778 

4.00 

Total House 
Changes 

$17,811 
(35 144) 

($17,333) 
0 

($17,333) 

0.00 

2 The following funding is added for 2019-21 biennium salary adjustments of 2 percent per 
year and increases in health insurance premiums from $1,241 to $1,427 per month: 

Salary increase 
Health insurance increase 
Total 

General Fund 
$20,425 

17 848 
$38,273 

3 Reduces funding for the American Indian Business Office to provide a total of $64,856. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_25_008 
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2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

HB 1005 
2/28/2019 

Job # 32971 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk:  Rose Laning / Carie Winings 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the Indian 

affairs commission. 

Minutes:                                                 Testimony Attached # 1. 

 
Legislative Council: Brady Larson  
OMB: Becky Deichert  
 
Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order on HB 1005.   
 
Scott Davis, Executive Director, North Dakota Indian Affairs Commission 
North Dakota Indian Affairs Commission Testimony - Attached # 1.  
  
Talked about responsibility of leadership and what’s the difference between making a 
difference versus making a statement.  Those who make a difference requires discipline, 
education, patience and understanding and this is what we’re all about.    
 
He introduced his staff:  
Brad Hawk - Indian Health Systems Administrator   
Erica Thunder – Judicial Systems Administrator (& Child Welfare) 
Marietta Kemmet - Administrative Assistant  
Leah McCloud – Administrative data (part time)  
 
Chairman Holmberg: You are aware that this committee, as the House did, removed the 
section regarding the 10% from all budgets.   In the executive recommendation, they talked 
about an open ended appropriation from any additional money from federal or other funds.  
That was put in a number of bills and the House removed that.  Some agencies have had 
this kind of authority before and others haven’t – and this would be new for you, right? 
In section 2 – “in addition to the amounts appropriated, there is appropriated any additional 
income from federal or other funds”.  It was section 2 in the governor’s recommendation. It’s 
not in the bill now and it wasn’t in last session’s session laws.    
 
Becky Deichert:  Yes, you are correct.  That was new language added.  
 



Senate Appropriations Committee  
HB 1005 
February 28, 2019 
Page 2  
   

Chairman Holmberg: As far as the dollar amounts that are in the budget; you’re satisfied 
with what the House did? (Becky Deichert indicated in the affirmative) We have not had any 
detente between us and the House yet on salary issues. We passed our out at 2and3 and 
the House passed theirs out at 2and2. We will have to get together and arm wrestle as to 
where we end up.  We also passed an $80/month minimum for all state employees in that 
salary package, but nothing will happen on that; at least until after the 11th or 12th   when we 
get our new budget forecasts. We will not be passing this bill out today.   
 
Senator Robinson:  We missed seeing your dad around this year.  Is he doing well? 
 
Scott Davis:  Yes, he is still going through his PT, but knowing him he will probably come in 
next week.  
 
Senator Robinson: The students that are attending tribal colleges, where is that funding 
bill? 
 
Scott Davis: That is in Higher ED.  
 
Senator Robinson: We had some discussion here yesterday with job service people 
regarding the absence of an office at Rolla and the 85-mile trek to Devils Lake.  There is a 
significant unemployment issue there. The discussion we had was on the possibility of a pilot 
project one day a week or something to provide services there.   What is the situation at 
Berthold and Fort Yates in terms of access to Job Service services?  
 
(10:50) Scott Davis: That is twofold. I look at that as part of Job Service but also part of 
workforce development that we are all heavily involved in.  When I look at the tribal colleges, 
and the money that they have received, I think some of them have done very well and some 
have had some hiccups on that. That is where I would turn to you, when it comes to jobs, 
that the return by appropriations given in creating jobs for students coming out of colleges. I 
look at the tribal college as a job service in a way, because they have that mission.   A couple 
years ago when we had to scale back on some of those allotments, the numbers showed 
they weren’t being used.   I’ve been pushing hard thru economic portfolio of mine. The rules 
of doing business on a reservation have been and need to further be discussed. I’ve been a 
strong proponent of private sector businesses on a reservation for those purposes. To get 
those unemployment rates down to hopefully meet our state rates. It is an anomaly for the 
reservations to have such high rates.  There are risky rules of doing business on the 
reservation in my opinion.  
 
Senator Robinson: You mentioned your father’s program that has been highly successful.  
Have there been efforts to replicate that in other areas?  I know it is easier said than done.  
What’s happening in Turtle Mountain has been exciting to hear about, and we need a lot 
more of that.  Where are we at in that process, and are we funding it at a level that we have 
the return on investment and realizing the potential that we could if there would be more 
support there?  It concerns me when I hear your comment regarding low unemployment 
statewide but that it is high on the reservation. We are looking for workers all over. Two years 
ago we had testimony about shining success stories of truck drivers getting good jobs.  
 



Senate Appropriations Committee  
HB 1005 
February 28, 2019 
Page 3  
   

Scott Davis:  There is a lot of effort. Some are very broad and some are small. Tribal 
leadership tries to track private businesses.  You have to legislate in a way that you can 
attract businesses on reservations. I have been adamant about that.  For most of us, our job 
is to try to legislate good tax policy and provide a way to do cheaper business in within our 
respective areas.  I think tribes need to really look at that. How do you attract your good 
workforce? I think it is kind of that ND small town mentality where some would rather stay 
home than go elsewhere to work.  There are so many jobs. In fact, I am trying to broker one 
now between private industry and some of the tribes to get more people to the oil fields again. 
It is a huge opportunity for someone who wants to take that and run.  I’ve been promoting 
that there are opportunities for work.  
 
Senator Robinson: The tribal colleges are central to this.  
 
Senator Grabinger: I see the cut to the business office funding. Can you explain how that 
will affect your operations? 
 
Scott Davis:  The allotment that we had to trim down was chosen because it is $100,000 
per biennium and if we could scale that back even by $30,000 and live with it and continue 
services and establish private businesses, we would do that.  That was reinstated on the 
House side, and I am feeling good about that. In that process, I have partnerships with 
foundations to help fund that. It is a mixed bag of how we fund a new business alliance. We 
do have an executive director and a board with multiple partnerships that focus on private 
sector jobs.  Through the budget process you have to look at your budgets and see how you 
can trim.  
 
(17:44) Senator Mathern:  I notice in Fargo, Bismarck, Grand Forks, and Minot there is an 
effort to develop service centers for Native people.  Does your office have resources to help 
in that regard or is that outside of your scope?   
 
Scott Davis:  That is a good question and that is also personal to me. My wife established a 
non-profit here in Bismarck/Mandan called the Native American Development Center. As you 
know half of us live on the reservation and half of us live off the reservation in North Dakota. 
I am an urban Indian. In the city of Bismarck/Mandan there are 4500 of us that work, go to 
school, and even are business owners. We come to the cities for opportunity.  Where can we 
go to get help that we are familiar with?  That is why we developed the center. Fargo has 
one with the Indian Affairs Commission.  It is more of a government entity. The focus is 
housing, jobs, and a place to go.  My wife works heavily on the criminal justice side. When 
people get out of prison they go to her office and look for help with work etc.  It’s always 
ongoing.  It is not a handout either. It’s a hand up – an empowerment type of system. It is 
challenging, but there is a consistent place where people can go to get services.  
 
Senator Mathern: Does your office provide services to these centers? 
 
Scott Davis:  No, our focus is always tribal nations and reservations.  
 
Senator Hogue: Leading up to the election there was an issue with the voter identification, 
and with certain members not having a street address either on their tribal ID or their driver’s 
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HB 1005 
February 28, 2019 
Page 4  
   

license; could you update us on where each of the tribes are at. Do they feel the situation is 
resolved at this point? Do they still have concerns?  
 
Scott Davis: That is a good question and it is one that has been floating in my office since 
the time of the new voter ID law that was passed a couple of sessions ago.  We did 
communicate with tribal leadership on that new legislation. We have had discussions with 
them and with the Secretary of State’s office. With the new street address and how that 
relates to 911, all that has changed.  It was a challenge and it was perceived as a way to 
disenfranchise tribal people from voting.  There was plenty of time to get a correct tribal or 
state ID.  Today, through the process of this last election, I think we are sitting very well with 
all the tribes because of the voter turnout. We had record turnout. In the debriefing with the 
Secretary of State, everybody had the correct and necessary ID.  I think that is in a good 
place. There is some ongoing discussion that should happen, but I am confident that 
Secretary of State Jaeger and Deputy Silrum are open to that.  We did everything we could 
to work with the county auditors and tribal enrollment, as well as DMV’s to make sure that 
everyone was ready with their correct ID.   
 
Senator Robinson: You mentioned that there are 4500 Native Americans in 
Bismarck/Mandan; do you have statistics regarding the employment of those people?   From 
the standpoint of Native Americans, that’s important.   
 
Scott Davis: We are working on the data sets on that. It takes some digging but we will get 
those numbers.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Closed the hearing on HB 1005.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

HB 1005    
3/28/2019 

JOB # 34351 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk:   Alice Delzer  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation to defray the expenses of the Indian 
Commission. (DO PASS AS AMENDED) 
 

Minutes:                                                 1.Proposed amendment # 19.0193.02002 

 
Chairman Holmberg: called the Committee to order on HB 1005.   All committee members 
were present except Senator Hogue.  Chris Kadrmas, Legislative Council and Larry Martin, 
OMB were also present.  
 
Chairman Holmberg:  We will open the hearing on the Indian Affairs commission with one 
amendment.  They were very happy with the budget. They had the only question was the 
salary and benefits.  The House had put in their 2% and 2% increases and we had been 
talking about a 2% increase the first year with a $80.00 minimum which helps more than half 
of the state employees, and then for the second year a 3 % increase.   What this means than  
instead of having made the decision collectively,  we will be doing it in 48  budget bills.  I had 
passed out the amendment, See Attachment # 1. The only difference is the salary and wages 
are up to 3% level, a slight increase over the House measure.    
 
Senator Robinson: moved the Amendment # 19.0193.02002. 2nd by Senator Grabinger.   
 
Senator Mathern: I went down to this little lunch deal at noon and the governor talked about, 
we shouldn’t be talking about either/or; we should be talking about and/and. We can do this 
and we can do that.  That there is plenty of money to do that. So I am wondering why you 
wouldn’t have gone with a 3 and 3 and that’s one question.  The second question is, is the 
$80.00 essentially bring this more than 2 or is the $80.00 minimum within the 2%, meaning 
somebody in highest income would get a little less so that the person at the lowest income 
would get at least $80.00?  
 
Chairman Holmberg: The people below will get a little more than 2%.  The lower end will 
get a little more than 2%. But, Chris, we also put in additional money.   
  



Senate Appropriations Committee  
HB 1005  
03-28-19  
Page 2  
   

Chris Kadrmas, Legislative Council: To give you an idea in this case, there was one 
individual that fell below the threshold so they received the $80.00 minimum so it’s actually 
$24.00 more than had it been just a straight 2% and 3%.     
 
Senator Mathern: We have an appropriation for the first year is really more than the straight 
2%.  It’s to make up those $24.00.  
 
Chris Kadrmas:  that would be correct, for the individuals who fall below.   
 
Chairman Holmberg: Is there $1,100,000 for the general fund?  And I can’t remember the 
special fund. So it is more money for the $80.00 minimum.  For the first question, why not, 
because we decided we were going to put more money into nursing homes, remember the 
executive budget had a 1 and 1% there, and that took some money.  And other needs and 
priorities of legislators. The budget numbers we have here for state employees is less than 
the executive budget, but the executive budget also had to be the assessment for health 
care, for employees that we have put the money in so there won’t be that change on health 
care.  The question of retirement, that hasn’t been settled, but that is separate from this.  I 
don’t know what the House is going to do.  I know the House has said what they would like 
to do.  The only thing they told us was that if the 1 and 1 was passed they would have it so 
that it wouldn’t go into effect until July 1, 2021, so that no state employee would receive that 
last 6 months a reduction in their salaries. That’s the latest word. It’s spreading the money 
around a little differently. Is there lots of money?  There is money. Is there a major difference 
between the House and the Senate as to how much is in the budget, how much is available 
revenue-wise, there are some differences.   
 
(0.05.58) Senator Mathern: I can accept that.  I had hoped that we would have pushed 
further yet in light of all of the talk on the governor’s part that we have the resources. We just 
overturned a veto where we actually even put more money in.   I hope in other places, we 
take the executive to task, where they say they can raise money and we make some 
amendments to create that condition.    
 
Chairman Holmberg:  All in the favor of amendment say aye.  it carried.  
 
Senator Grabinger:  Moved a Do Pass as Amended on HB 1005.  2nd by V. Chairman 
Krebsbach.    
 
A Roll Call vote was taken.  Yea: 13; Nay: 0; Absent: 1.  Chairman Holmberg will carry 
the bill.  
 
The hearing was closed on HB 1005.    
 
 
 



19.0193.02002 
Title.03000 
Fiscal No.2 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Holmberg 

March 28, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1005 

Page 1, replace lines 11 through 13 with: 

"Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Total general fund 

Renumber accordingly 

$848,407 
263,704 

$1,112,111 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

House Bill No. 1005 - Indian Affairs Commission - Senate Action 

Base House Senate 
Budget Version Changes 

Salaries and wages $848,407 $866,218 $3,473 
Operating expenses 263 704 228,560 

Total all funds $1,112,111 $1,094,778 $3,473 
Less estimated income 0 0 0 

$21,284 
(35,144) 

($13,860) 

Senate 
Version 

$869,691 
228,560 

$1,098,251 
0 

General fund $1,112,111 $1,094,778 

FTE 4.00 4.00 

$3,473 

0.00 

$1,098,251 

4.00 

Department 316 - Indian Affairs Commission - Detail of Senate Changes 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts 
Funding for 

Salary 
lncreases1 

$3,473 

$3,473 
0 

$3,473 

0.00 

Total Senate 
Changes 

$3,473 

$3,473 
0 

$3,473 

0.00 

$869,691 
228,560 

$1,098,251" 

1 Funding is added to provide for employee salary increases of 2 percent on July 1, 2019, with a minimum monthly 
increase of $80, and an increase of 3 percent on July 1, 2020. The House provided funding for a salary increase of 
2 percent on July 1, 2019, and 2 percent on July 1, 2020. 

Page No. 1 19.0193.02002 



Date: 3-J.£ ... /9 
Roll Call Vote#:_..,_{ __ 

2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES //i 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. v05 

Senate Appropriations 

D Subcommittee 

Committee 

Amendment LC# or Description: ____ J_q�, _{)_/�f_3=· �·-Q-J,�O-�O--=c:2-_____ _ 
Recommendation: 

Other Actions: 

·12" Adopt Amendment fi Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By _(i:----+......_.h--+i�n ............. s ..... o____,_(\-+---- Seconded By 

Senators 
Senator HolmberQ 
Senator Krebsbach 
Senator Wanzek 
Senator Erbele 
Senator Poelman 
Senator Bekkedahl 
Senator G. Lee 
Senator Dever 
Senator Sorvaaq 
Senator Oehlke 
Senator Hogue 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) 

Floor Assignment 

Yes No 

No 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Senators Yes No 
Senator Mathern 
Senator Grabinqer 
Senator Robinson 



Date: ,1 ·J.R'- ;q 
Roll Call Vote #: o1. �--

2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES / 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. / C)Q.5 
Senate Appropriations 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 

Committee 

-----------------------
Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 'A Do Pass D Do Not Pass 

·,)( As Amended 
D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D Place on Consent Calendar 
Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By (o r J t' r1 q e t: Seconded By 
--'---�_J____,__... ___ _ 

Senators Yes No Senators 
Senator Holmberg v Senator Mathern 
Senator Krebsbach r Senator Grabinger 
Senator Wanzek ""- Senator Robinson 
Senator Erbele // 
Senator Poelman y' 
Senator Bekkedahl 
Senator G. Lee . ./ 
Senator Dever � 
Senator Sorvaag � v 
Senator Oehlke v 

Senator Hoque A 

Yes No 
;----

�,.... 
� 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) __ __,_/_,.'--�----- No __ O�------

/ 
Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
March 29, 2019 8:01AM 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_56_001 
Carrier: Holmberg 

Insert LC: 19.0193.02002 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1005, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (1 3 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1 005 
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1 ,  replace lines 1 1  through 1 3  with: 

"Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Total general fund 

Renumber accordingly 

$848,407 
263,704 

$1 ,1 1 2,1 1 1  

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

$21 ,284 
(35,1 44) 

($1 3,860) 

House Bill No. 1005 - Indian Affairs Commission - Senate Action 

Base House Senate 

$869,691 
228,560 

$1 ,098,251 " 

Budget Version Changes 
Senate 
Version 

$869,691 
228,560 

Salaries and wages $848,407 
Operating expenses 263,704 

Total all funds $ 1 , 1 1 2, 1 1 1  
Less estimated i ncome 0 
General fund $ 1 , 1 1 2, 1 1 1  

FTE 4.00 

$866,2 1 8  
228,560 

$ 1 , 094,778 
0 

$ 1 ,094,778 

4.00 

$3,473 

$3,473 
0 

$3,473 

0.00 

$ 1 ,098,251 
0 

$ 1 ,098,251 

4.00 

Department 316 - Indian Affairs Commission - Detail of Senate Changes 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts Funding for Salary 
lncreases1 

$3,473 

$3,473 
0 

$3,473 

0.00 

Total Senate Changes 

$3,473 

$3,473 
0 

$3,473 

0.00 

1 Funding is added to provide for employee salary increases of 2 percent on July 1 ,  201 9, 
with a minimum monthly increase of $80, and an increase of 3 percent on July 1 ,  2020. T he 
House provided funding for a salary increase of 2 percent on July 1 ,  201 9, and 2 percent on 
July 1, 2020. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_56_001 



 

 

 

 

2019 TESTIMONY 

HB 1005 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



• 

• 

• 

Prepared for the House Appropriations Committee 

Dep ar tmen t 316 - In d i an Aff a irs Comm i s s ion 
Hou se B ill No. 1005 

E xecu 1ve u 1ge f B d tC omp ari son o nor 1enmum t P · B "  A " f  poropri a ion s 
FTE Positions General Fund Other Funds 

201 9-21 Executive Budget 4.00 $1 , 1 1 0 , 1 51 $0 
201 7- 1 9  Leg islative Appropriations 4.00 1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  0 
Increase (Decrease) 0 .00 ($ 1 ,960) $0 

On an d One-T ime Gener al Fun d A 

Total 
$1 , 1 1 0, 1 5 1 

1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  
($ 1 ,960) 

Ongoing General Fund 
A ro riation 

One-Time General 
Fund A ro riation 

Total General Fund 
A ro riation 

201 9-21 Executive Budget 
201 7- 1 9  Adjusted Leg islative Appropriations 
Increase Decrease 

Agency Funding 

$1 , 1 1 0 , 1 51 
1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  

$ 1 ,960 

$1 .20 ,--------.,-.--,--,,------------, 
FTE Positions 

6.00 

$1 .00 

,,, $0.80 

$0.60 

5.00 

4.00 

3.00 

2.00 

1 .00 

0 .00 

5.00 - 5.00 --

$0 
0 

$0 

4� -

$ 1 , 1 1 0 , 1 5 1 
1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  

$ 1 ,960 

4.00 --

$0.40 

$0.20 

$0.00 
201 3-1 5 201 5-1 7 201 7-1 9 201 9-21 

Executive 
Budget 201 3-1 5 201 5-1 7 201 7-1 9 201 9-21 

• General Fund o Other Funds Executive 
Budget 

E xecu 1ve u 1ge f B d tC om p ari son 
General Fund 

201 9-21 Executive Budget $ 1 , 1 1 0 , 1 51 
201 9-21 Base Level 1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  
Increase (Decrease) ($1 ,960) 

t B 0 ase L eve 
Other Funds Total 

$0 $ 1 , 1 1 0 , 1 51 
0 1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  

$0 ($ 1 ,960) 

Attached as an appendix is a deta i led comparison of the executive budget to the agency's base level appropriations. 

Execu tive Bu dget H ighl igh ts 
General Fund 

1 .  Adds funding for state employee salary and benefit increases , of $53 ,646 
which $34,087 is for salary increases, $ 1 5 , 1 1 5  is for health 
insurance i ncreases , and $4,444 is for reti rement contribution 
increases 

2 .  Adjusts base payrol l  by i ncreasing funding for the d i rectors' salary 
{$34 , 1 28) and reducing other salaries and wages ($54 ,590) . 
(excludes changes to salaries , benefits , and health insurance 
noted above) 

3. Reduces funding for the American Ind ian Business Office 

($20,462) 

($35 , 1 44) 

Other Funds 
$0 

$0 

$0 

Total 
$53,646 

($20,462) 

($35, 1 44) 

January 8, 20 1 9  



O ther Sec tions in B ill 
Additional income - Section 2 would appropriate any additional federal  or other funds avai lable to the I ndian Affairs Commission 
during the 201 9-2 1 bienn ium.  

Line item transfers - Section 3 would authorize the agency to transfer up to 10 percent of  the agency's appropriation authority 
between l ine items in Section 1 of the bi l l .  

Continu ing Appropr i ations 
Indian Affairs Comm ission printing fund - North Dakota Century Code Section 54-36-08 - Used to defray expenses incurred 
by the commission in producing and distributing publ ications and educational materia ls .  

S ig n if ic ant Au d it F ind ing s  
There are no significant audit findings for this agency. 

M ajor Rel ated Leg i sl ation 
At this t ime, no major legislation has been introduced affecting this agency. 
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I nd ian Affairs Commission - Budget No. 31 6 

House Bi l l  No.  1 005 

Base Level Fund ing Changes 
Executive Budget Recommendation 

FTE General Other 
Position Fund Funds Total 

201 9-21 Bien n ium Base Level 4.00 $1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  $0 $ 1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  

201 9-21 Ongoing Fund ing Changes 
Base payrol l  changes ($20,462) ($20,462) 
Salary increase 34 ,087 34, 087 
Health insurance increase 1 5 , 1 1 5  1 5 , 1 1 5  
Retirement contribution i ncrease 4,444 4 ,444 
Reduces American I nd ian Bus iness Office funding {35 , 1 44} {35 , 1 44} 
Total ongoing funding changes 0.00 ($ 1 , 960) $0 ($1 , 960) 

One-time fund ing items 
No one-time funding items $0 
Total one-t ime funding changes 0 .00 $0 $0 $0 

Total Changes to Base Level Fund ing 0.00 ($1 , 960) $0 ($1 , 960) 

201 9-21 Total Fund ing 4.00 $ 1 , 1 1 0 , 1 5 1 $0 $1 , 1 1 0 , 1 51 

Other Sections for Indian Affai rs Commission - Budget No. 31 6 

Appropriation - Add itonal federal funds or other 
funds 

Line item transfers 

Executive Budget Recommendation 

Section 2 would appropriate any additional income from 
federal or other funds which may become avai lable to the 
I nd ian Affairs Commission for the 201 9-2 1 bienn ium.  

Section 3 would authorize the I nd ian Affai rs Commission to 
transfer up to 1 O percent of the agency's total appropriation 
authority between l i ne  items during the 201 9-21 bienn ium . 



Prepared by the Legislative Council staff 

Dep artment 316 - Ind i an Aff a irs Comm iss ion 

H istorical Appropriations Information 

Ongo ing Gener al Fund Appropr i ations S ince 2011-13 

Ongoing General Fund Appropriations ( in Mill ions) 
$1 .20 �----------------� 

FTE Positions 
1 0.00 

8 .00 

6.00 

4.00 

2.00 

0 .00 

4.00 --
5.00 5.00 -

___ 4._QQ 4.00 -- -$0.80 

$0.60 

$0.40 

$0.20 

$0.00 

201 1 -1 3  201 3-1 5 201 5-1 7 201 7-1 9 201 9-21 
Executive 

Budget 

201 1 -1 3  201 3-1 5 201 5-1 7 201 7-1 9 201 9-21 
Executive 

Budget 

Onaoina General Fund Annrooriations 

201 1 -1 3  201 3-1 5 201 5-1 7 
Ongoing general fund appropriations $822,878 $1 ,027,558 $ 1 , 1 27,740 
Increase (decrease) from previous biennium N/A $204,680 $ 1 00 , 1 82 
Percentage increase (decrease) from N/A 24.9% 9 .7% 
previous bienn ium 
Cumulative percentage increase (decrease) N/A 24.9% 37.0% 
from 201 1 - 1 3  biennium 

201 7-1 9 
$1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  

($ 1 5 ,629) 
1 .4% 

35. 1 %  

M ajor Incre ases (Decre ases) in  Ongo ing Gener al Fund Appropr i ations 
201 3-1 5 Biennium 

1 .  Added 1 Native American health system program administrator FTE position 
2 .  Increased funding for temporary employees' salaries 
3 .  Reduced operating expenses 

201 5-1 7 Biennium 
1 .  Added funding for desktop support services 
2 .  Added funding to transfer the North Dakota American Ind ian Business Development Office from the 

Department of Commerce to the I ndian Affairs Commission 
3 .  Reduced operating expenses 

201 7-1 9 Biennium 
1 .  Removed 1 I ndian education program administrator FTE position 
2. Restored funding for the Youth Leadersh ip Academy that was removed as a result of the August 

20 1 6  general  fund budget reductions 
201 9-21 Biennium (Executive Budget Recommendation) 

1 .  Adjusts base payrol l  by increasing funding for the di rector's salary ($34 , 1 28) and reducing other 
salaries and wages ($54 ,590) . (excludes salaries, benefits and health insurance increases) 

2. Reduces funding for the American Indian Business Office 

201 9-21 
Executive 

Budget 
$1 , 1 1 0 , 1 51 

($1 ,960) 
(0.2%) 

34.9% 

$1 84,284 
$24,882 
($9,957) 

$ 1 2 ,000 
$1 00 ,000 

($3,831 ) 

($ 1 09,850) 
$1 0 ,572 

($20,462) 

($35, 1 44) 

January X, 201 9 
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GOVERNOR'S RECOMMENDATION FOR TH E 
INDIAN AFFAIRS COMMISSION AS SUBMITTED BY THE 

OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET 

SECTION 1. APPROPRIATION.  The funds provided in this section, or so much of the funds as may 
be necessary, are appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise 
appropriated, to the Ind ian affai rs commission for the purpose of defraying the expenses of the Ind ian 
affairs commission, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021, as follows: 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Total general fund 
Full-time equ ivalent positions 

Base Level 
$848,407 

263,704 
$1,112,11 

4.00 

Adjustments or 
Enhancements 

$33,184 
(35,144) 
($1,960) 

(1.00) 

Appropriation 
$881,591 

228,560 
$1,110,151 

4.00 

SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION. In add ition to the amounts appropriated to the Ind ian affairs 
commission in section 1 of this Act, there is appropriated any add itional income from federal or other 
funds which may become available to the agency for the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending 
June 30, 2021. 

SECTION 3. TRANSFER. Notwithstand ing section 54-16-04, the agency may transfer between line 
items within section 1 of this Act up to ten percent of the total appropriation contained in section 1 during 
the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021. The agency shall notify the office of 
management and budget and the legislative council of any transfer made pursuant to this section . 

Governor's recommendation as submitted by the Office of M anagement and Budget 
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North Dakota Indian Affairs Commission 
House Appropr iat ions Budget Hear ing 

House Appropriat ions Com mittee 
Cha irman ,  Representative John  Nelson 

North Dakota State Cap ita l ,  B ismarck N D  
J anua ry 8th, 2019 

Cha i rman Nelson and members of the Com mittee, 

My name  is  Scott J. Davis, I am a member  of the Stand ing  Rock S ioux Tribe  and  a descendent of 

the Tu rt le  Mounta in  Band of Ch ippewa and  I am p roud to serve the  great state of North Dakota 

as the  Executive Di rector of the North Dakota I n d ia n  Affa i rs Com miss ion .  As Com miss ione r, I 

serve on  the Governor's Cab inet. I am  jo ined today by staff members i n  p resenting  ou r  

test imony today. Thank  you for th is opportu n ity. 

It has  been a very busy b ienn ium to say the least, th i s  yea r  the North  Dakota I nd i an  Affa i rs 

Com miss ion wi l l  commemorate its 70th yea r  as a l egis l atively a uthorized Com miss io n .  The n i n e-

member  Commiss ion is comprised of the Governor, the five N D  Triba l  Cha i rpersons and  fou r  at­

! a rge members appointed by the Governor, th ree of whom must be of Native American 

descent .  The Commission is  authorized to meet on a q u a rter ly basis, o r  at the behest of the 

governor .  The work of the commission  is coo rd i nated and adm in istered by a five-member  staff. 

\ 
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statutorv Authority 

North Dakota Centu ry Code Sect ions 54-36-03 to 54-36-09 . 

Agency Description 

The North Dakota I nd i an  Affa i rs Com miss ion is the l ia ison between the executive b ranch and  

the five triba l  n at ions of  North Dakota .  D ut ies inc lude coord ination and med iat ion service with 

tri ba l  n at ions and  the state and its agencies rega rd ing interagency commun icat ion,  protocol, 

a nd  j u risd ict iona l  issues. Add it iona l ly, the agency works with triba l  governments, their peop le 

and commun it ies to enhance capac ity i n  worki ng with the state of North Dakota . 

The I nd i an  Affa i rs Comm iss ion is respons ib le  for the ma intenance and pub l icat ion of severa l 

documents, i nc l ud ing  but not l im ited to the Statewide Di rectory of American I nd i an  resou rces, 

a nd  h istorica l and  contempora ry information and  research about North Dakota 's  American 

I nd i an  cit izens .  Th is  past b ienn i um we he l ped p roduced the ND  Tax I nformat ion for Nat ive 

American and  Triba l  Governments and  the N D  Commission to Study Racia l  Eth n i c  B ias in the 

Cou rts . These materia l s  a re ava i l ab le  i n  p ri nt and  for down load on the Commiss ions website. 

Agency Mission Statement 

"The I n d ia n  Affa i rs Commiss ion sha l l  have the power to assist and to mobi l i ze the support of 

state and  federa l  agencies in assist ing I nd ia n  i nd ividua ls and groups in  ND, especi a l ly the five 

tri ba l  counci l s, as they seek to deve lop the i r  own goa ls, p roject p lans for ach ievi ng those goa ls, 

and  imp lement ing those p la ns" .  

• 
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• To i nvestigate any phase of I nd i an  affa i rs and to assemb le  and make ava i l ab le  the facts 

needed by tri ba l ,  state, and federa l  agencies to work effectively together. 

• To assist triba l, state, and federal agencies i n  deve lop ing p rograms whereby I nd i an  

cit izens may achieve a better qua l ity of  l ife . 

• To assist triba l  groups in  develop ing increasingly effective institutions of self-

government. 

• To work for greater understand ing and improved relationsh ips between I nd i ans  and  

non- I nd i ans. 

• To seek increased partic ipation by I nd i an  cit izens i n  local and  state affa i rs .  

• To confer  with and coord inate offic ia ls and agencies of other  governmenta l  un its and  

congress iona l  committees with rega rd to  I nd ian  needs and goa ls .  

• To encou rage and p ropose agreements and accords between federa l, state, and  local 

agencies and the severa l tri ba l  governments, and ,  p u rsuant to chapter 54-40.2, to assist 

i n  mon itor ing and negotiat ing agreements and  accords when asked by an affected tribe .  

3 
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The performance of the North Dakota I nd i an  Affa i rs Commiss ion is prem ised u pon the goa l s  of 

the Governor and  those p riority issues a rt icu l ated by triba l  leaders .  

The efficacy of the North Dakota I nd i an  Affa i rs Commiss ion Offices' efforts and i ts  projects a re 

conducted through weekly meeti ngs with the Governor's office, as we l l  as summative reviews 

as reported to the Governor in cab inet reports and ND tri ba l  leaders through Commission 

meetings .  Most of the Com miss ion staff work is based on e ither, legis lat ion, statutori ly 

mandated involvement ( representation on the Triba l-State Relat ions I nter im Legis lat ive 

Com mittee (now known as the Triba l -State Taxation Committee), for examp le ), state regu l atory 

requ i rements, specific requests made in  Comm ission meet ings; or issues ar is ing out of State 

Agency or tri ba l  req uests. 

My d i rect working relat ionsh ip  with 20+ state agencies, 5 Triba l  Cha i rs and Counci ls, the rap id 

growth of our  state, have evo lved exponent ia l ly i n  the past 9+ yea rs . Th is growth has forced my 

office to respond to n umerous requests for partnerships, appo intments to com mittees, 

emergency response inc idents, and  provide state, triba l  and federa l  test imony on po l icy and  

l aw .  The  growth of  work i n  the a reas of  economic deve lopment/jobs, o i l/energy, cou rt/j ud ici a l  

systems, l aw enforcement, game  and  fish, transportation, pub l i c  safety, data accumu l at ion, 

ch i ld welfare/j uven i le just ice, education systems, taxat ion and hea lth care systems have been 

and wi l l  cont i nue  to be the main focus of our office. The performance and accountab i l ity of my 

office requ i res me to conti nua l ly track and ma inta i n  the numerous issues and projects 

estab l ished by those partnersh i ps .  The su bsta ntia l  number of agreements and  compacts made 
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between the tr ibe and state are cha l lenging at t imes but requ i re consistent commun ication and  

good fa ith consu ltation in  order for them to  be susta inab le .  

Our Staff: 

American Indian Health Systems Administrator - Brad Hawk 

Mr. Cha i rman and Members of the Committee, the ND Ind i an  Affa i rs Commiss ion Office is the 

sma l lest state agency in ND  and has been for decades. Over that t ime, the office has rarely 

asked for add it iona l  staff assistance. Two sessions ago you afforded our office with I nd i an  

Hea lth Systems Admin istrator, for that we a re very thankfu l .  Brad Hawk is a member of  the  

Crow Creek Sioux Tribe of  South Dakota, completing h is  bachelor's degree i n  hea lth 

admin istration from the Un iversity of South Dakota and h is M BA from the Un iversity of Ma ry. 

The I nd ian Hea lth Systems Administrator, Brad Hawk, has been part of various hea lth ca re 

projects and efforts. He partic i pates in ongoing Med ica id Triba l  Consu ltation .  These meet ings 

happen quarterly here in B ismarck to give the Tribes i nformation on Med ica id system and  other  

DHS re lated information . 

Brad a lso works with Department of Human  Services Med ica id  d ivis ion to gather meet ings at 

each Triba l  Nation on the 100% FMAP d iscussions. This inc luded meetings to ta l k  about 

cha l lenges i n  developing coord inated care agreements with non-native hea lth p roviders i n  ND .  

He h a s  he ld meetings with I nd ian Hea lth Service leadersh ip  about performing coord inated care 

for Triba l  pat ients. Brad a lso works with Triba l  Leaders in  order  to educate how shared savings 

5 
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of N D  Genera l  Funds  wou l d  be used i n  the i r  commun it ies if a b i l l  is passed i n  the legis l ative 

sess ion .  

Brad attends and  pa rt ic ipates i n  d iscuss ions a round ora l  hea lth care access i n  the  triba l  

commun it ies .  He  works Tri ba l  Hea lth leaders about the work happen ing nat ionwide to add ress 

d ispa rit ies in o ra l  hea lth for Tri ba l  members .  He assists with meet ings with Tri b a l  Leadersh ip  i n  

ND to  hea r  the i r  concerns for not havi ng mid- leve l providers ava i l ab le  i n  the i r  commun it ies . He 

a lso ass ists and  partic ipates i n  va r ious meetings to a lso ta l k  about hea lth educat ion a round ora l  

hea lth  with fam i l ies a nd  k ids i n  the  school systems. 

Hea lth ca re data d iscussions cont i nue  to be a b ig topic for our  office, and Brad i n  h is ro le .  He 

part ic ipated i n  va r ious meeti ngs a round commun ity hea lth assessments. Many of these 

d iscussions  a re a round  conso l idat ing d ifferent assessments so the Triba l  popu lat ion is not asked 

va rious  t imes for hea lth  data .  

Behaviora l Hea lth issues cont i nue  to be a n  issue i n  Triba l  commun it ies. Brad has part ic i pated in 

the Behaviora l  Hea lth P la n n ing Counc i l  to ta l k  about d ifferent i n it iat ives statewide .  This group 

a lso works with the Governor's Office to ta l k  about in it iatives and poss ib le  legis lative changes. 

He has been active with the Ju st ice and Menta l Hea lth Task Force. Th is group looks at the law 

enforcement and  j ud ic ia l  s ide of address ing behaviora l  hea lth needs. 
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Brad a lso serves on the Suic ide Prevention Task Force, which has been meeting q ua rterly to 

keep everyone up to date on opportun it ies for fund i ng  a co l l aborat ion . He has a lso he l ped 

select qua l ified app l icants for grants to reduce su icides i n  ND .  

Judicia l  Systems Administrator - Erica Thunder 

Erica Thunder, a member of MHA Nation, graduate of Bott ineau H igh School , and the Un iversity 

of North Dakota graduate twice over-she obta ined her bache lor's Degree in po l it ica l  science 

with honors; and two doctorate degrees: a J u ris Doctorate and  a Certificate in  Federal I nd i an  

Law, from UND School of  Law. She  serves as Jud ic ia l  Systems Adm in istrator for ND IAC. 

Under  her ro le, she develops working relations with North Dakota's Triba l, State, and Federa l  

J ud ic ia l  Systems and  Law Enforcement Systems. This h a s  i ncl uded assist ing ND  Supreme Court 

Justice Tufte with Committee on Triba l  and  State Cou rt Affa i rs, to begin improvements i n  data 

shari ng and resource shar ing among the two Sovereigns. She works extensively on lega l 

research and lega l writ ing for ND IAC, as wel l  as B i l l  d rafting. I n  her work with law enforcement, 

she has estab l ished monthly meet ings between ND IAC and  ND Hwy Patro l, a long with Cu ltu ra l 

Lia ison for ND  Hwy Patrol, Trooper Jenna  Clawsen .  These meetings have led to spearhead ing 

the fi rst l aw enforcement MOU's between the State and  the Tribes, wh ich ,  a lthough i n  the i r  

i nfancy, wi l l  l ead to better support for pub l ic  safety. I n  her  capacity, she is a lso assist ing i n  

creat ing the  fi rst Triba l-State Drug Task Force, i n  the Tu rt le Mounta ins .  

She has developed and been integra l to the writ ing of ch i l d  welfa re pol ic ies, wh i le  deve lop ing 

working re lat ions with ch i ld welfare programs and  issues . Her  background in  Ch i ld  We lfa re has 
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led her  to ass ist i ng i n  re-writ i ng  the State and Tribe's Tit le  IV-E Agreements, which had not been 

u pdated s i nce 1983 . Aga i n , though these agreements a re not comp leted, they have been 

i ntegra l to the worki ng re lationsh ips  between State and Tri be, ensu ring proper foster ca re 

fu nd i ng  is  issued accord ing  to Federa l  and  State law. 

Er ica has a lso p layed a pa rt i n  writ ing and reviewi ng the M HA DOT Licens ing Agreement 

between the State and  M HA, creat ing important petit ions used i n  school d i str icts where 

vu l nerab le  peop le a re be ing underserved, med iated a p rom inent m iss ing person's case, Ol ivia 

Lone  Bea r, with mu lt ip le  law enforcement j u risd ict ions, and a lso is  tasked with reviewing 

l a nguage re :  taxat ion issues .  

Other  d ut ies of hers i nc l ude :  perform ing  research, pol icy, and data co l lect ion, ana lysis and 

report ing, and  assist ing with l eg is lat ive heari ngs, committees, as wel l  as worki ng with No rth 

Dakota tri ba l  co l l eges on pub l i c  safety and lega l issues .  

She, a long with the whole ND IAC team, with Commiss ioner Davis's lead, put together  

educationa l  p resentat ions for the North Dakota I nd ian Youth Leadersh ip  Academy, where they 

a lso active ly p l an, pa rt ic ipate, and ass ist with the week- long event's activities. She a lso has  

coord i nated Law Enforcement and  Lega l pane l s  for ND IAC's Strengthen ing Government to 

Government Re lat ions, a long with serving on the I nd ian Law Section .  

She cu rrent ly serves on the State Committees i n clud ing: Dua l  Status Youth I n iti ative, 

Committee on Tri ba l  and  State Cou rt Affa i rs, P revention of Sexua l  Abuse of Ch i ld ren Task  Force, 

Ch i l d ren's Behaviora l Hea lth Task Force, the STOP Committee, North Dakota Human  Traffick ing 
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Commission, and was appointed to Governor Burgum's I nterstate Oi l  and  Gas Compact 

Commission, among others . 

Executive Administrative Assistant to the Executive Director - Marietta Kemmet 

Marietta is an enrol led member of the Tu rt le Mounta in Band of Ch ippewa . Degrees incl ude  a 

Lega l Assistant and returned to school i n  2005 to earn a Bache lor's Degree i n  Bus iness 

Mangement from Mayvi l le State Un iversity. She worked in H igher Education for 22 years and 

has been with the North Dakota Ind ian Affa i rs comm ission s ince 2017 as an  Executive Assistant 

to the D i rector. Her ro le is to manage the office to ensure smooth operation on a da i ly bas is .  

She has a lso taken on other duties and is cu rrently i nvolved with the committee, in cooperation 

with the North Dakota Army Nationa l  Gua rd, to create the Wood row Keeb le award . 

Marietta is married to Bruce Kemmet and  has three ch i l d ren and five grandch i l d ren .  

Data Specia l ist (part time status) - Leah Mccloud 

Leah is an enro l led member of the Tu rt le Mounta in Bank of Ch ippewa . Leah's d uties a re to 

team ND I nd ian Affa i rs Commission office with the five tr ibes of N D  on add ress ing tr ibe's data 

gaps and qua l ity. Leah  has worked i n  deve lopment for 17 years and went back to school to earn 

her master's degree in Project Management from the U n ivers ity of Mary. She is married to 

Vincent McCloud and together have seven ch i l d ren and five grandch i l d ren .  

Du r ing her emp loyment for TM Band of  Ch ippewa and  Sky Dancer Casi no she has developed 

and p romoted many fi rst-t ime ever annua l  events for her  tri be .  



North Dakota Indian Youth Leadership Academy (NDIYLA) 

V\-'3, \COS 
\ / �  / 20 19 

AA G-( \1M U\4 A 

M r. Cha i rman and  members of the com mittee, i n  the 2011 legislative sess ion our  budget 

i nc l uded an appropriat ion of $60,000 to continue  the deve lopment and p l ann ing  of the N D  

I nd i an  Youth Leadersh i p  Academy. You wi l l  not i n  the budget spreadsheet, we d id  have a n  

a l lotment to th is  amount. Th is com ing J u n e  wi l l  mark the 10th annua l  N D IYLA. The I nd i an  Affa i rs 

Comm iss ion office and  its p l ann i ng com mittee have made a strong commitment i n  making  th is 

Academy an a nnua l  event. We fee l  the partnersh ips with the ND State Bank, the ND Un ivers ity 

Systems, and  the N D  Triba l  Col leges have made an enormous impact on nearly 500 Native 

American students. We a re now witness ing many of our Academy students now attend ing tri ba l  

co l l eges and  our  ND co l leges and tak ing up  vo l unteer leadersh ip ro les with i n  the i r  commun it ies . 

M r. Cha i rman and members of the com mittee, on beha lf of the hund reds of students who 

pa rt ic i pated i n  the academy we hope you wi l l  support the continuat ion of th is va l uab le 

program .  

Contract Appropriations American Indian Business Development Office 

The American I nd i an  Busi ness Deve lopment Office contract appropriation is be ing moved from 

the Depa rtment of Commerce to the I n d ian  Affa i rs Commission .  

For the past 9 yea rs, the North Dakota I nd i an  Affa i rs Commission (ND IAC) has been a strong 

pa rtner with the ND Dept. of Commerce.  Both offices have been able to e levate the American 

I nd ian  Bus i ness Deve lopment Office to another leve l .  I th i n k  it is fa i r  to say, a l l  agree that a Fu l l  

Time Emp loyee is NOT needed . We have contracted this out  for the past 10+ yea rs i n  the sum 

of 100K. 

• 
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Th rough the leadersh ip of the Executive D i rector of ND IAC we now have been ab le  to 

concentrate of identify native owned bus inesses that exist with i n  North Dakota . We 

a lso, have now been able to provide  techn ica l assistance for native owned startup bus inesses 

and a lso growing those wel l-establ ished private native owned bus inesses. 

We a lso have now establ ished the fi rst ever North Dakota I nd i an  Business Al l i ance, which 

members a re p rivate native owned bus inesses. We a lso have championed Triba l  Bus iness 

Economic Summits and are making strides regard ing Triba l  Un iform Commercia l  Codes. This wi l l  

p rov ide an  equa l  p laying fie ld when i t  comes to  fi l ing financ ia l  and  bus iness transact ions .  Our  

next step is to  continue our  work with the Secretary of  State i n  gett ing those transactions 

e lectronica l ly to fi l l ing systems. Th is wi l l  requ i re a Memorandum of Agreement between the 

Tri be and the State. 

We have a lso, he lped co-create the North Dakota Native Tou rism Al l i ance .  Th is Al l i ance is 

gea red toward p lann ing, partnering and creat ing a tou rism destiny on each reservation . As we 

al l know, Tourism is huge economic sector of our State. It ou r  goa l  to bu i l d  upon that with our  

Triba l  commun it ies which wi l l  help estab l i sh a stronger economy, jobs  and bus inesses on the  

reservations. 

\\ 
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The North Dakota I nd i an  Affa i rs Commiss ion pa rtners with the State Historica l Society of North 

Dakota and the State H istorica l Society Foundation i n  order to present its annua l  Native 

American Ha l l  of Honor .  

The Hal l  is an  annua l  p rogram recogn iz ing Native Americans who have gone above and beyond 

in  representing their tr ibe and cu ltu re .  It is located i n  the North Dakota Heritage Center & State 

M useum in Bismarck. The p rogram recogn izes trad itiona l  and contemporary ach ievements in  

fou r  categories : Arts and  Cu ltu re, Ath let ics, Leadersh ip and Veterans. Much work goes into the 

p lann ing and  preparations for the Ha l l , a long with the app l ication, boa rd select ion process, and 

u ltimate Ha l l  of Honor program, wh ich inc ludes d in ner, i n-depth video presentat ions of each 

new member, stories, enterta inment, and words of insp i ration from its newly received 

members and the i r  fam i l ies/friends/commun it ies. It is a wonderfu l way for our  office to 

contribute to the rich h i story of our  State and the wonderfu l Triba l  people it has produced, who 

have gone out and made extraord ina ry l ives for themse lves and serve as exemp la ry ro le models 

to us a l l .  

Strengthening Government to Government Relations Conference 

Mr. Cha i rman,  th is past January and December of 2018, our office hosted two conferences 

d i rected towards improving Triba l, State and Federal partnersh ips. Both two conferences had 

partici pation attendance at 300 people .  I strongly feel that these two conferences strengthened 

a commitment for a l l  government entities to work and commun icate more effectively and 

improve the Government to Government relations for our  State and Tribe .  

\v 
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Mr. Cha i rman th is past b ienn ium, our  office, l i ke a l l  state agencies went th rough the p rocess of 

cutt ing 5% from our base appropriations which amount to -$35, 144.00. Th is amount was taken 

from the $100,000.00 American Ind ian Bus iness Deve lopment Office fund .  

Transfer Authority 

M r. Cha i rman, our  office/agency fu l ly the supports the authority to transfer between l i ne  

items  up  to  ten percent of  the tota l appropriat ion conta ined i n  section du ring the b ienn i um 

begi nn i ng Ju ly 1, 2019 and  end ing June  30, 2021 .  The  agency sha l l  notify the  office of 

management and budget and the legislative counc i l  of any transfer made pu rsuant to th is 

sect ion . 

Budget Narrative, Request Summary and Detai l  (see attachments) 

In c losing, I bel ieve our office and my position have been extraord inari ly effective, efficient, 

productive, and re l i ab le, whi le producing heavy amounts of work, and with that l a rge workload, 

ma inta in ing very good relationships with a l l  of those who we work a longside .  The amount of 

work we produce for th is state with 4 FTE employees is u nheard of at any other  level of 

government. I be l ieve that we as a staff have e levated the state and triba l  re lat ions to a new 

and excit ing level, considering where we were at 2 yea rs ago . I n  comparison to other states we 

are the leader in how wel l  we work together with the North Dakota Tribes. It is ou r  

comm itment to  the  state and to the  tribes that our  office wi l l  continue  to  work in  a l l  areas 

needed in  fu lfi l l i ng the good and strong government to government re lationsh ips we have here 

in North Dakota . 

\1> 
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M r. Cha i rman and  members of the committee, th is  conc ludes my test imony. I wi l l  be happy to 

answer any questions you may have at th i s  t ime • 
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I ntroduced by 

Appropriations Committee 

(At the request of the Governor) 

HOUSE BILL NO. 
1005 

(Governor's 
Recommendation) 

Sixty-Sixth, 
Legislative Assembly 

of North Dakota 
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A bi l l  for an act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the Ind ian  affairs 
commission ;  and to provide for a transfer. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1 .  APPROPRIATION.  The funds provided in th is section ,  or so much of the funds 
as may be necessary, are appropriated out of any moneys i n  the genera l  fund in  the state 
treasury, not otherwise appropriated , to the I ndian affairs commission for the purpose of 
defraying the expenses of the Ind ia n  affairs commission ,  for the bienn ium beg inn ing J uly 1 ,  201 9 ,  

and ending June 30 ,  202 1 , as fol lows:  

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Tota l  genera l  fund 
Fu l l-time equiva lent positions 

3ase Level 
$848,407 

263,704 
$ 1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 

4 .00 

Adjustments or 
Enhancements 

$33, 1 84 
(35,1 44) 
($1 ,960) 

( 1 .00) 

Appropriation 
$881 ,591 

228,560 
$ 1 , 1 1 0 , 1 5 1 

4 .00 

SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION.  In addition to the amounts appropriated to the I nd ian  affairs 
commission in  section 1 of this Act, there is appropriated any additiona l  income from federa l  or  
other funds which may become avai lable to the agency for the bienn ium beginn ing J uly 1 ,  201 9 ,  

and ending June 30 ,  2021 . 

SECTION 3. TRANSFER. Notwithstanding section 54-1 6-04, the agency may transfer 
between l ine items with in section 1 of this Act up  to ten percent of the tota l  appropriation 
contained in  section 1 during the bienn ium beg inn ing Ju ly 1 ,  20 1 9 , and ending June 30, 202 1 . The 

agency shal l  notify the office of management and budget and the legislative cou nci l of any tra nsfer 
made pursuant to this section .  

\5 
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North Dakota Indian Affairs Commission 
House Appropr iat ions Budget Hear ing 

House Appropr iat ions Committee 
Cha i rman,  Representative John Ne lson 

North Dakota State Cap ita l ,  B ismarck N D  
J anua ry 8th, 2019 
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Cha i rman Ne lson and members of the Com mittee, my name is Scott J .  Davis, I am a member  of 

the Stand ing Rock S ioux Tri be and a descendent of the Tu rt le Mounta in Ba nd of Ch ippewa and  I 

am proud to serve the great state of North Dakota as the Executive Di rector of the North 

Dakota I nd i an  Affa i rs Commission .  As Commiss ioner, I serve on the Governor's Cab inet .  I am 

jo ined today by staff members in  present ing our test imony today.  Thank  you for th is  

opportun ity. 

It has been a very busy b ien n ium to say the least, th i s  year  the North Dakota I nd i an  Affa i rs 

Comm iss ion wi l l  commemorate its 70th year  as a legis l atively authorized Comm ission .  The n i ne-

member Comm iss ion is comprised of the Governor, the five ND  Tri ba l  Cha i rpersons and fou r  at-

l a rge members appo inted by the Governor, th ree of whom must be of Native American  

descent. The  Com miss ion is authorized to  meet on a qua rterly bas is, or a t  the behest o f  t he  

governor .  The  work o f  t he  commission  is  coord i nated and adm in istered by  a five-member staff. 

Statutory Authority 

North Dakota Centu ry Code Sect ions 54-36-03 to 54-36-09 . 

\ 
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The North Dakota I nd ian  Affa i rs Com miss ion is the l i a ison between the executive branch and  

the  five triba l  nat ions of  North Dakota .  Duties i n c l ude  coord i nat ion and  med iat ion service with 

triba l  nat ions and the state and its agencies rega rd ing i nteragency commun icat ion, protocol, 

and ju r isdict iona l  issues. Add it iona l ly, the agency works with triba l  governments, the i r  peop le 

and  commun it ies to enhance capacity i n  worki ng with the state of North Dakota . 

The I nd ian  Affa i rs Commission is respons i b le  for the ma intenance and  pub l icat ion of severa l 

documents, inc lud ing but not l im ited to the Statewide Di rectory of America n  I nd i an  resou rces, 

and h i storica l and contemporary informat ion and  resea rch about North Dakota 's American 

I nd i an  citizens .  Th is past b ienn i um we he l ped produced the N D  Tax I nformation for Native 

America n and Triba l  Governments and  the ND Comm iss ion to Study Raci a l  Eth n ic  Bias i n  the 

Cou rts . These materia l s  a re ava i l ab le  i n  pr int and  for down load on the Comm issions website . 

Agency Mission Statement 

"The I nd ian Affa i rs Commission sha l l  have the power to assist and  to mob i l i ze  the support of 

state and  federa l  agencies in assist i ng  I nd i an  i nd ivid ua l s  and  groups in ND, especi a l ly the five 

triba l  counci ls, as they seek to deve lop the i r  own goa ls, p roject p l ans  for ach ievi ng those goa l s, 

and imp lement ing those p lans" . 



• 

The Commission 's  duties a re :  

• To i nvestigate any phase of  I nd ian affa i rs and to  assemb le  and  make ava i l ab l e  the  facts 

needed by triba l , state, and federal agencies to work effectively together .  

• To assist tri ba l, state, and federal agencies i n  deve lop ing p rograms whereby I nd i an  cit izens  

may ach ieve a better qua l ity of  l ife . 

• To assist triba l  groups in  developi ng i ncreas ingly effective institut ions of self-government. 

• To work for greater understand ing and improved re lat ionsh ips  between I nd i ans  and non-

• 
Ind i ans. 

• 

• To seek i ncreased part ic ipat ion by I nd ian  cit izens i n  loca l and  state affa i rs .  

• To confer with and coord inate offic ia l s  and agencies of other  governmenta l  u n its and 

congressiona l  committees with rega rd to Ind ian needs and goa ls .  

• To encou rage and  propose agreements and accords between federa l ,  state, and  loca l 

agencies and the severa l triba l  governments, and ,  pu rsuant to chapter 54-40.2,  to assist i n  

mon itor ing and negotiat ing agreements and accords when  asked by  an  affected tr ibe . 
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Performance and Accountabi l ity 

The performance of the North Dakota I nd i an  Affa i rs Com m iss ion is prem ised upon the goa ls of 

the Governor and those priority issues a rt icu l ated by tri ba l  leaders .  

The effi cacy of the North Dakota I nd i an  Affa i rs Com m iss ion Offices' efforts and  i ts  projects a re 

conducted through weekly meetings with the Governor's office, as we l l  as summative reviews 

as reported to the Governor in cabi n et reports and ND tri ba l  leaders th rough Com m ission 

meeti ngs .  Most of the Com mission staff work is  based on either, legis lat ion, statutori ly 

mandated i nvo lvement (representat ion on the Triba l -State Re lat ions  I nter im Legis l ative 

Com m ittee for examp le ), state regu latory req u i rements, specific requests made in Comm iss ion 

meeti ngs; or issues a ris ing out of State Agency or  tri ba l  req uests. 

My d i rect worki ng re lationsh ip with 20+ state agenc ies, 5 Triba l  Cha i rs and  Counci ls, the ra p id 

growth of our  state, have evo lved exponenti a l ly i n  the past 9+ yea rs .  Th is growth has  forced my 

office to respond to numerous requests for pa rtnersh i ps, appo intments to com mittees, 

emergency response inc idents, and  p rovide state, tri ba l  and  federa l  test imony on pol icy and  

l aw. The  growth o f  work i n  t he  a reas o f  economic  deve lopment/jobs, o i l/energy, cou rt/law 

systems, education systems, taxation and  hea lth care systems h ave been and  wi l l  conti nue  to 

be the main focus of our office. The performance and accountab i l ity of my office requ i res me to 

conti n u a l ly track and ma inta in  the numerous i ssues and projects estab l ished by those 

partnersh ips .  The la rge number of agreements and  com pacts made between the tr ibe and  state 
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are cha l leng ing at t imes, but requ ire cons istent comm u n icat ion i n  order for them to be 

susta i n ab le .  

American Indian Health Systems Administrator 

Mr. Cha i rman  and  Members of the Committee, the N D  I nd i an  Affa i rs Commiss ion Office is  the 

sma l l est state agency i n  ND  and has  been for decades .  Over that t ime, the office has rarely 

• 
asked for add it iona l  staff assistance. Two sess ions ago you afforded our  office with I nd i an  

Hea lth Systems Adm in i strator, for that we a re very thankfu l .  The  I nd ian  Hea lth Systems 

• 

Adm i n istrator has been part of various hea lth ca re p rojects and  efforts. Part ic i pate i n  ongo ing 

Med ica id Triba l  Consu ltation .  These meet ings happen qua rterly here i n  Bismarck to give the 

Tribes informat ion on Med ica id system and  other  OHS related information .  

Work with Depa rtment o f  Human  Services Med ica id d iv is ion to  gather meet ings a t  each Tri ba l  

Nat ion on the 100% FMAP d iscussions .  Th is i nc luded meetings to  ta l k  about cha l l enges i n  

deve lop ing coord in ated ca re agreements with non-native hea lth providers i n  N D . He ld  

meet ings with I nd i an  Hea lth Service leadersh i p  about perform ing  coord inated ca re for Tri ba l  

5 
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patients. Have ta l ked with Tri ba l  Leaders about how shared savi ngs of ND  Genera l  Funds  wou ld  

be used i n  the i r  commun ities i f  a b i l l  i s  passed i n  the legis l ative sess ion .  

Attended and partici pated in  d iscussions a round  ora l hea lth  care access i n  the tri ba l  

commun it ies .  Ta l ked with Triba l  Hea lth leaders about the work happen ing nat ionwide to 

add ress d isparities in oral hea lth for Tri ba l  members .  Had meet ings with the Tri ba l  Leadersh ip  

i n  ND to hear the i r  concerns for not hav ing mid- level p roviders ava i l ab le  i n  the i r  commun it ies .  

Had va r ious meetings to a lso ta lk  about hea lth education a round ora l hea lth with fam i l ies and 

k ids  i n  the school systems. 

Hea lth care data d iscussions conti nue  to be a b ig topic. H ave pa rt ic ipated i n  va r ious meet ings 

a round commun ity hea lth assessments. Many of these d iscuss ions a re a round conso l idat ing 

d ifferent assessments so the Tribal popu l at ion is  not asked va rious t imes for hea lth data . 

Behaviora l  Hea lth issues conti nue to be an  issue i n  Triba l  commun it ies .  Part ic i pate i n  the 

Behaviora l  Hea lth P lann ing Counci l to ta l k  about d ifferent i n itiatives statewide .  Th is group a l so 

works with the Governor's Office to ta l k  about i n itiatives and possi b le  legis l ative changes. Have 

been active with the Justice and Menta l Hea lth Task Force . Th is  group looks at the law 

enforcement and jud ic ia l  s ide of add ress ing behaviora l hea lth needs . 
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Su ic ide Prevention Task Force have been meet i ng qua rter ly to keep everyone up  to date on 

opportu n it ies for fund ing a co l l aborat ion . Have he l ped select qua l ified app l icants for grants to 

red uce su ic ides i n  ND .  

Judicia l Systems Administrator 

Erica Thunder, a member of MHA Nat ion, graduate of Bott ineau H igh School, and  the 

Un iversity of  North Dakota graduate twice over-obta i n i ng one undergrad degree : Bache lors i n  

Po l it ica l Science; and doctorate degrees : J u ris  Doctorate and  Cert ificate i n  Federa l  I nd i an  Law, 

serves as Jud icia l  Systems Admin istrator for N D IAC. 

Under  her ro le, she develops worki ng re lat ions with North Dakota's Triba l , State, and Federa l  

J ud ic ia l  Systems and  Law Enforcement Systems .  Th i s  has i nc l uded assist ing N D  Supreme Cou rt 

Just ice Tufte with Committee on Tri ba l  and  State Cou rt Affa i rs, to begin improvements i n  data 

shar ing and resou rce shar ing among the two Sovere igns .  She works extensively on lega l 

resea rch and lega l writ ing for ND IAC, as we l l  as Bi l l  d raft ing.  I n  her  work with law enforcement, 

she has estab l ished month ly meeti ngs between N D IAC and  ND Hwy Patrol, a long with Cu ltura l  

Li a ison for ND  Hwy Patrol, Trooper Jenna Clawsen .  These meet ings have led to spearhead ing  

the fi rst l aw enforcement MOU's  between the State and  the Tri bes, which, a lthough i n  the i r  

i nfancy, wi l l  l ead to better support for pub l i c  safety. I n  her  capacity, she is a lso assist ing i n  

creat ing the  fi rst Tri ba l -State Drug Task Force, i n  the Tu rt le Mounta ins  . 

7 
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She has deve loped and  been integra l to the writ ing of ch i ld  welfa re po l ic ies, wh i l e  deve lop i ng 

worki ng re lat ions with ch i ld  we lfa re p rograms and issues .  Her  background  i n  Ch i ld  Welfa re has 

led her  to assist i ng i n  re-writ ing the State and  Tr ibe's Tit le IV-E Agreements, wh ich had not been 

updated s ince 1983. Aga in, though these agreements a re not comp leted, they have been 

i ntegra l to the worki ng re lat ionships between State and Tribe, ensur ing p roper  foster ca re 

fu nd ing is issued accord ing to Federa l and  State law. 

Erica has a lso p layed a part in writi ng and reviewi ng the M HA DOT Licens ing Agreement 

between the State and  MHA, creati ng important petit ions used i n  school d i str icts where 

vu lnerab le peop le a re be ing underse rved, med iated a p rom inent m issi ng person's case, O l iv ia 

Lone Bea r, with mu lt ip le  law enforcement ju r isd ict ions, and a lso is tasked with reviewing 

la nguage re : taxat ion issues . 

Other  dut ies of he rs i nc lude :  perform ing resea rch, po l icy, and data co l l ect ion,  ana lysis and 

report ing, and  ass ist ing with legislative heari ngs, comm ittees, as we l l  as worki ng with North 

Dakota tr iba l  co l l eges on pub l i c  safety and lega l issues. 

She, a long with the whole ND IAC team, with Comm issioner  Davis 's lead, put together 

educationa l  p resentat ions for the North Da kota I nd i an  Youth Leadersh ip  Academy, where they 

a lso active ly p l an ,  pa rt ic ipate, and assist with the week- long event's activit ies .  She a lso has  

coord i nated Law Enfo rcement and Lega l pane l s  for N D IAC's Strengthen ing Government to 

Government Re lat ions, a long with servi ng on the I nd i an  Law Sect ion . 

She cu rrently se rves on the State Comm ittees inc lud ing :  Dua l  Status Youth I n iti ative, 

• 
Comm ittee on Triba l  and  State Cou rt Affa i rs, P revention of Sexua l  Abuse of Ch i ld ren Task Force, 
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Ch i l d ren 's  Behaviora l Hea lth Task Force, t h e  STOP Com m ittee, North Dakota Human  Trafficki ng 

Comm iss ion, and was appointed to Governor Burgum's I nterstate O i l  and  Gas Compact 

Comm iss ion, among others .  

North Dakota Indian Youth Leadership Academy (NDIYLA) 

Mr. Cha i rman and members of the comm ittee, in the 2011 legis l ative sess ion our  budget 

i nc l uded an appropriat ion of $60,000 to conti nue  the deve lopment and  p l ann i ng  of the N D  

I nd i an  Youth Leadersh ip  Academy. You wi l l  not i n  the budget spreadsheet, w e  d id  have an  

a l lotment to  th is  amount. This com ing  J une  wi l l  mark the 10th annua l  N D IYLA. The  I n d i a n  Affa i rs 

Commiss ion office and its p l ann ing comm ittee have made a strong comm itment i n  making th is  

• Academy an annua l  event. We fee l  the partnersh ips with the N D  State Ban k, the N D  Un iversity 

Systems, and the ND Tri ba l  Co l leges have made a h uge impact on nea rly 500 Native American 

students .  We are now witness ing many of our  Academy students now attend ing  triba l  co l l eges 

and  ou r  ND co l l eges and tak ing up vo lu nteer leadersh ip  ro les with i n  the i r  commun it ies .  

M r. Cha i rman and members of the comm ittee, on behalf of the hund reds of students who 

part ic i pated i n  the academy we hope you wi l l  support the conti n u at ion of th i s  va luab le  

p rogram . 

• 
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Contract Appropriations American I ndian Business Development Office 

The American I nd ian  Bus iness Deve lopment Office contract appropriat ion is be ing moved from 

the Department of Commerce to the I nd i an  Affa i rs Commi ss ion .  

For the past 9 yea rs, the North Dakota I nd i an  Affa i rs Com m iss ion ( ND IAC) h a s  been a strong 

partner  with the ND  Dept. of Commerce. Both offices have been ab le to e levate the American 

I nd i an  Bus i ness Deve lopment Office to another  leve l .  I th i n k  it is fa i r  to say, a l l  agree that a Fu l l  

Time  Emp loyee is NOT needed . We have contracted th i s  out for the past 10+ yea rs i n  the sum 

of  100K. 

Th rough the leadersh ip  of the Executive Di rector of ND IAC we now have been ab le  to 

concentrate of identify native owned bus inesses that exist with i n  North Dakota .  We 

a lso have now been ab le  to provide techn ica l  ass ista nce for n ative owned sta rtu p  bus inesses 

and a lso growing those we l l-estab l i shed private native owned bus inesses. 

We a l so have now estab l ished the fi rst ever North Dakota I nd i a n  Bus iness A l l i ance, which 

mem bers a re p rivate native owned bus inesses. We a lso have champ ioned Tri ba l  Bus iness 

Economic  Summ its and are making str ides rega rd ing Triba l  U n iform Commerc ia l  Codes. Th is 

wi l l  p rovide an  equa l  p layi ng fie ld when it  comes to fi l i ng  fi n anci a l  and  bus iness transactions .  

Our  next step is to cont inue our  work with the Secretary of State i n  gett ing those transact ions 

e lectron ica l ly to fi l l i ng  systems. Th is wi l l  req u i re a Memorandum of Agreement between the 

Tribe  and  the State. 

We have a l so, he lped co-create the North Dakota Native Tou ri sm Al l i ance .  Th is A l l i ance is  

• geared towa rd p l ann ing, partnering and creat ing a tour ism destiny on each reservation . As we 

jO  
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a l l  know, Tou rism is huge economic sector of our  State .  It ou r  goa l  to bu i l d  u pon that with our  

Tri ba l  commun it ies which wi l l  he l p  estab l ish a stronger economy, jobs  and bus inesses on the 

reservat ions .  

Strengthening Government to Government Relations Conference 

Mr. Cha i rman ,  th i s  past January and December of 2018, our  office hosted two conferences 

d i rected towards improvi ng Triba l, State and Federal pa rtnersh ips .  Both two conferences had  

part ic i pat ion attendance a t  300 peop le .  I strongly fee l  that  these two conferences strengthened 

a comm itment for a l l  government entit ies to work and  commun icate more effectively and 

improve the Government to  Government re lat ions for ou r  State and  Tri be .  

Reduction in Base Funding 

Mr. Cha i rman th i s  past b ien n ium, ou r  office, l i ke a l l  state agenc ies went th rough the process of 

cutt ing 5% from ou r  base appropriat ions which amount to -$35, 144.00. Th is amount was taken 

from the $ 100,000.00 American Ind i an  Bus i ness Deve lopment Office fund .  

Transfer Authority 

M r. Cha i rman,  ou r  office/agency fu l ly the supports the authority to transfer between l i ne  

items u p  to  ten  percent of the  tota l appropriat ion conta i ned i n  sect ion du ring the  b ienn i um  

begi nn i ng J u ly 1 ,  2019, a nd  ending J une  30, 2021 .  The agency sha l l  notify t he  office of 

management and  budget and the l egis lative counc i l  of any transfer made pu rsuant to th i s  

sect ion . 

\ \ 



• 

• 

Budget Narrative, Request Summary and Deta i l  (see attachments) 
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I n  c losi ng, I fee l  our  office and my posit ion have been very busy and fee l  that we as a staff have 

e levated the state and triba l  relations to a new and excit ing level, cons ider ing where we were 

at 2 yea rs ago.  In compa rison to other  states we a re the leader in how wel l  we work together 

with the North Dakota Tribes. It is our  comm itment to the state and to the tr ibes that our  office 

wi l l  conti nue to work i n  al l a reas needed in fu lfi l l i ng the good and strong government to 

government re lationsh ips we have here in North Dakota .  

M r. Cha i rman and members of the committee, th is  conc ludes my test imony. I wi l l  be happy to 

answer any questions you may have at th is  t ime 

l 'J  
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I ntroduced by 

Appropriations Committee 

(At the request of the Governor) 

HOUSE BILL NO. 
1 005 

(Governor's 
Recommendation) 

Sixty-Sixth, 
Legislative Assembly 

of North Dakota 

t\ 

A bil l  for an act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the Indian affairs 
commission ; and to provide for a transfer. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1 .  APPROPRIATION. The funds provided in this section , or so much of the funds 
as may be necessary, are appropriated out of any moneys in the genera l  fund in the state 
treasury, not otherwise appropriated , to the Indian affairs commission for the purpose of 
defraying the expenses of the Indian affairs commission ,  for the biennium beginning Ju ly 1 ,  20 1 9 , 
and ending June 30, 202 1 , as fol lows : 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Total general fund 
Fu l l -time equivalent positions 

Base Level 
$848,407 

263,704 
$ 1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 

4 .00 

Adjustments or 
Enhancements 

$33, 1 84 
(35,1 44) 
($1 ,960) 

( 1 .00) 

Appropriation 
$881 ,591 

228,560 
$ 1 , 1 1 0 , 1 5 1 

4 .00 

SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION .  I n  addition to the amounts appropriated to the I ndian affairs 
commission in section 1 of this Act, there is appropriated any additional income from federa l  or 
other funds which may become available to the agency for the biennium beginning Ju ly 1 ,  20 1 9 , 
and ending June 30, 2021 . 

SECTION 3. TRANSFER. Notwithstanding section 54-1 6-04 , the agency may transfer 
between line items within section 1 of this Act up to ten percent of the total appropriation 
contained in section 1 during the biennium beginning Ju ly 1 ,  201 9 ,  and ending June 30 , 202 1 . The 
agency shal l notify the office of management and budget and the legislative council of any transfer 
made pursuant to this section . 

\ 3  
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Indian Business Development - Allocation of Funds by Main I n itiatives 

October 29, 2018 
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Executive Summary: The American I nd i an  Bus iness Deve lopment Office (AI BDO) contracts with the North Dakota I nd i an  Bus i ness 

A l l i a nce ( N DI BA) to assist Native American tr ibes and their members i n  sta rting and growing bus i nesses. Th is  effort i s  fu nded by the 

State of North Dakota through a $50,000/yea r grant ($100,000/b ienn i um ) .  In genera l  terms, ND I BA focuses its efforts on fou r  (4) 

main i n it iatives :  

• Techn ica l  ass istance to asp i ring and  emerg ing Nat ive American owned and  operated bus i nesses. 
• Tra i n i ng & educat ion to promote entrepreneursh ip  both on and  off reservat ions located i n  North Dakota . 
• I ncreas ing access to capita l  by support ing the deve lopment of Nat ive CDF l s  (Commun ity Deve lopment F inanc ia l  I nstitut ions) .  
• Promoting an  envi ronment that supports doi ng bus i ness i n  I nd i an  Country, especi a l ly re lat ive to U n iform Com merc ia l  Code .  

ND I BA primar i ly provides sta rtup ass istance to  its c l ients. Due to l im ited staffi ng (1 FTE ), ND I BA doesn't have the capacity to provide 

ongo ing bus i ness deve lopment support to i ts  c l ients . I n  other words, ND I BA assists i ts  c l ients with gett ing the i r  bus i nesses sta rted 

(e .g . ,  register ing with the Secreta ry of State, deve lop ing bus i ness p la ns, app lyi ng for a n  E IN with the I RS, sett ing u p  a bank  account 

with an  accou nt ing system, referr ing to other resou rces, etc . ) .  ND I BA a lso offers a grant program that provides up  to $1,000 i n  fu nds 

to assist new bus i nesses with bas ic  ma rket ing needs such a bus i ness ca rds, websites, s ignage, trade show materia l s, socia l  med ia  

presence, etc. 

Once ND I BA's c l i ents have set up the i r  bus iness, l itt le if a ny add it iona l  support is provided .  However, ND I BA is ava i lab le  to offe r 

advice to former c l ients as requested .  S ince ND I BA doesn't typica l ly provide ongoing techn ica l  ass ista nce, there is no mechan i sm 

cu rrently i n  p lace to track the progress and  status of  its former c l i ents . N D I BA s imp ly serves as a resou rce to past c l ients, and  i nstead 

focuses most of its t ime and efforts on servi ng new c l ients . 

Beyond provid ing d i rect techn ica l ass istance to emerging and new Native American owned bus i nesses, ND I BA a l so serves as a 

lead ing advocate for the adopt ion of the UCC Model Tri ba l  Secu red Transact ion Act among the five tr ibes of North Da kota . N D I BA 

a l so deve loped and manages an  on l i ne bus i ness d i rectory (www.nativebus iness .d i rectory) featu ri ng Native American owned 

bus inesses located primari ly i n  the five (5) states with I nd i an  Bus i ness A l l i a nce ( I BAs), i nc l ud ing N D, SD, MT, MN and WI. Lastly, 

ND I BA provides tra i n i ng and  educat ion to promote entrepreneursh ip .  Each b ienn i um, ND I BA conducts a tr iba l economic 

development summit which has h i storica l ly attracted over 100 attendees from across the State . 

1 

I L-\  



• • 
\\�\(J.fJ . \ \a\ \ JO\C\ 

• 

With a l l  of th is  i n  m i nd, here is a s ummary report of ND I BA's past, present and futu re work with its c l ients served du ri ng the cu rrent b ien n i um .  

Client Name Service(s) Provided Company Status ND IBA Involvement 

ND Native Tou rism Al l ia nce Techn ica l  Assistance with Operat iona l  Ongoing support 
organ izationa l structu re 
development .  Register with Sec. of 
State, ass ist with secu ring 501c3 
status, ma rket ing advice 

Native American Deve lopment Center Techn ica l ass ista nce in secu ring CDF I  Operat iona l  Complete 
fu nd ing (NACA), st rategic p lann i ng, 
and ma rket study 

Oyate Commun ity Deve lopment Corporation Ma rket needs assessment and Operat iona l  Complete 
strategic p la nn i ng 

Bea rsta i l  Basketba l l  M i n i-market i ng grant, register with Operationa l  Complete 
Sec. of State, ass ist with secu ring 
501c3 status, ma rket i ng advice, 
sett ing up banking account 

G rey Wi l low Music M i n i-ma rket ing grant, register with Operat iona l  Ongoing su pport 
Sec. of State, ma rket ing advice, 
register in SAM 

Nat iveways Trave l & Tou rs Sta rt-u p and secu re 501c3 status Operat iona l  Complete 
D&D Design Techn ica l ass ista nce with bus i ness Operat iona l  Complete 

deve lopment 
B ig Spi rit, I nc .  P rocu rement assistance Operat iona l  Active 
My Au nties Coffee & More M in i-ma rket ing gra nt Temp closed Complete 

bus i ness 
Bug Master M i n i-ma rket ing grant Operat iona l  Complete 
Tata nka Logistics Register with Sec. of State, Sta rt-u p  Ongoing support 

ma rket ing advice, bus i ness 
deve lopment 

Ne lson's Stone Design M in i -market ing gra nt, ma rket ing Operat iona l  Complete 
advice 

Bea r Ch ief Oi l M i n i-ma rket ing grant, techn ica l Operationa l  Complete 
ass ista nce on bus i ness expans ion 

2 
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Client Name Service(s) Provided Company Status NDIBA Involvement 
Rez Rock & Water M in i-ma rket i ng grant, techn ica l Operat iona l  Complete 

ass ista nce with cert ificat ion in  8 {a )  
and Hu bZone 

Thomas Custom P lumbing M i n i-market ing grant Operat iona l  Complete 
Stee lhorse Fue l  Services & Transport M i n i-ma rket ing grant Operat iona l  Complete 
Wa l n  Construction M in i-ma rket ing grant U nknown Complete 
Ch iptron ics M i n i -ma rket ing grant Operat iona l  Complete 
Stand ing Rock Development Corporat ion M i n i-ma rket ing grant Operat iona l  
Nanny's (McNe i l  Catering) Techn ica l  ass istance with bus iness Operat iona l  Ongoing support 

deve lopment 
Stand ing Rock Propone M in i -ma rket ing grant Operat iona l  Complete 
M isty's G ifts Techn ica l ass istance with bus iness Sta rt-u p  Ongoing support 

deve lopment 
Green Edge Landscap ing M in i-ma rket i ng grant Operat iona l  Complete 
EH I nvest igat ions & Secu rity M i n i-ma rket ing grant U nknown Complete 
Engage Ma rket ing & Events M i n i-ma rket ing grant, bus i ness Operationa l  Complete 

resou rce referra Is 
BT Sports M i n i -ma rket ing grant, register with Operat iona l  Complete 

the Sec. of State, ma rket ing advice 
Sch ind ler's Cable TV Techn ica l ass istance with bus i ness Operat iona l  Ongoing support 

development, Sam registrat ion, 
H ubZone cert ified 

Stand ing Rock Sioux Tri be G rowing Triba l  Econom ies pla nn ing Operat iona l  Complete 
ass istance, estab l i shed an "Action 
P lan" 

Al l  F ive ND Tribes Tri ba l Enterprise Workshop "Sta rt & Operat iona l  Complete 
G row You r  Tri ba l E nterprise" 

Sp i rit La ke Nation P l ann i ng Entrepreneuria l  Operat iona l  Ongoing support 
Empowerment workshop 

3 
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Indian Business Development - Allocation of Funds by Main Initiatives 

September 29, 2018 

In itiative Description Estimated Amount 

(Biennium) 

Techn ica l Ass ist ing over 20 new Nat ive 
Assistance American owned bus inesses in $25,000 

sta rt ing and  growing the i r  
operat ions (Equates to providing 

approximately 

$1,000/business in 

technical assistance) 

Tra i n i ng Conduct ing economic $25,000 
development and sma l l  bus i ness 
tra i n i ng with ND Tribes ca l led 
"G rowing Triba l  Economies -
Plant ing the Seed ." 

1 
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Outcomes, Main Activities & Additional Detai ls 

Assistance provided to :  B lacksm ith's Beautificat ion Center, 
Nat ive American Boxing Federat ion, J&C Services, F ive 

• 

Nations Art, Bea rsta i l  Basketba l l, G rey Wi l low M us ic, Beaver 
:reek Archeology, D&D Design, B ig Sp i rit, I nc . ,  My Au nties 
:offee & More, Bug Master, Tatan ka Logistics, Ne lson's Stone 
Des ign, women-owned bus i ness, dayca re bus iness, Bea r Ch ief 
O i l, Rez Rock & Water, Thomas Custom P l umbi ng, Stee lhorse 
i=uel Services & Transport, Wa ln  Construct ion, Ch iptron ics, 
G rey Wi l low LLC, Stand ing Rock Development Corporation, 
Nanny's (McNe i l  Catering), Stand ing Rock Propane, M isty's 
G ifts, G reen Edge Landscap ing, EH I nvestigat ions & Secu rity, 
Engage Market ing & Events, and  Sch ind ler' s  Cable TV. 
:onducted a sma l l  bus i ness deve lopment t ra i n i ng sess ion 
ca l led "Growi ng Triba l  Econom ies - P lant ing the Seed" at 
:>tand ing Rock S ioux Tribe (SRST) on Februa ry 2, 2017, i n  
:::onjunct ion with Federa l  Deposit I n su ra nce ( FD IC), USDA 
Rura l  Deve lopment Center, Sma l l  Bus iness Adm in istrat ion, 
North  Dakota Smal l  Bus iness Deve lopment Center, Oyate 
:ommun ity Deve lopment Corporation, and  the North  Dakota 
Depa rtment of Commerce. The group pa rtic i pated in the Rez 
:afe fac i l itated by N D I BA. A tota l  of 37 people part ic i pated in 
he tra i n i ng, i nc lud ing attendees from SRST's Tri ba l 

Government, Tri ba l P rograms, and a rea Nat ive Bus i ness 
owners .  The sess ion was he ld at the Stand ing Rock 
Adm in ist rative Service Bu i l d i ng, Fort Yates, N D. A s im i l a r  
sess ion was  conducted i n  conjunct ion w i th  Strengthen North  
Da kota with the Tu rt le Mounta in  Band of  Ch ippewa I nd ians  
on August 9 ,  2018. 
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Access to He lp ing to esta b l i sh a statewide 
Capita l Nat ive CDF I  (Commun ity 

Development F ina nc ia l  
I nstitut ion) to expand access to 
capita l  to Native owned 
bus inesses 

Techn ica l He lp ing launch two new non-
Assistance profit organ izations support ing 

Native tou rism 

I nfrastructu re Advocating for the adopt ion of 
Deve lopment the UCC Model  Tri ba l Secu red 

Transact ion Act among the five 
tribes of North  Dakota 

Ma rket ing Awarded 9 m in i-ma rket ing 
grants to Native American 
bus iness owners to he lp  them 
grow the i r  bus i nesses 

Tra i n i ng Conduct ing a t riba l economic 
development summit attract ing 
over 100 attendees 

• 

$20,000 

$15,000 

$5,000 

$5,000 

$2,500 

2 
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Proactively ass isted i n  estab l is h i ng a statewide Native CDFI  
headquartered i n  B ismarck ca l led the N ative America n 
Deve lopment Center (NADC) . Served on the Boa rd of 
Di rectors and  ass isted in conduct ing a ma rket needs 
!assessment and strategic p lan .  Also provided techn ica l 
ass ista nce to a nother Native CDF I  on the Stand ing Rock 
reservation ca l led Oyate Commun ity Development 
�orporat ion .  

• 

Provided techn ica l ass ista nce i n  sta rt ing two new non-profit 
prgan izations designed to advance tou rism among the tr i bes 
pf North  Dakota . The organ izat ions a re the North  Dakota 
Nat ive Tou ri sm Al l ia nce and  Nativeways Trave l & Tou rs .  
�ompi led and  provided representat ives from a l l  North Dakota 
rrribes with a comprehens ive package of UCC resou rces 
inc lud ing a flash d rive conta i n i ng the Ogla la  S ioux Tri be's 
�omplete U n iform Commercia l Codes (Art ic le 1 - 9), Bus iness 
todes, the Memorandum of U nderstand ing (MOU)  with the 
�tate of South Dakota for the fi l i ng, the Stand i ng Rock Sioux 
rrribes Art ic le 9 of the UCC, and the Model  Triba l Secu red 
rrransaction Act .  Worked with attorneys Cou rtney Two lance 
and David F ranke l  to conduct a UCC workshop for the G reat 
P la ins  Region Tribes at the 2018 Triba l leaders Summ it he ld 
m m id-September i n  Bismarck. 
M in i-market ing grants awa rded to: M isty's G ifts, Sta nd ing 
Rock P ropane, Engage Ma rket ing & Events, Thomas Custom 
P l umbing, Stee lhorse Fuel Services & Transport, Bug Master, 
Nanny's Cateri ng, Bea rsta i l  Basketba l l  and  My Auntie's 
�offee .  Addit iona l  grants were awarded to other fi rms 
�h rough fu nd ing from other  sou rces beyond State fu nd ing .  
Successfu l ly conducted a Regiona l  I nd i an  Bus i ness A l l i ance 
�onference i n  B ismarck, N D, on Nov. 3-4, 2016, which 
attracted 100 p lus attendees. 
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Market ing Lau nch ing a n  on l ine bus iness $2,000 
d i rectory to promote over 100 
Native American bus inesses 

Tra i n i ng Conduct ing youth $500 
entrepreneursh ip  tra i n ing 

Total $100,000 

3 
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A 
Deve loped, l aunched a nd manage an  on l i ne  bus i ness 
� i rectory (www. nat ivebus i ness . d i rectory) featu ring N ative 

• 

�merica n owned bus i nesses located pr ima ri ly i n  the five (S )  
5tates with  I nd ian  Bus i ness A l l i a nce ( I BAs), i nc lud ing N D, SD ,  
MT, MN and WI .  Other states represented i n  the d i rectory 
With Native-owned bus inesses inc lude F lor ida, Okla homa, 
Nebraska, Ca l ifornia, New Mexico and  Arizona .  
Worked i n  col la borat ion with Ma rketP lace for K ids  and 
Un ited Tribes Techn ica l Col lege to conduct a day- long 
entrepreneur ia l  event i n  B ismarck on May 18, 2017, which 
nc luded attendance by youth from the Theodore J amerson 

: lementary School ( located on the campus of Un ited Tribes ) .  
Attendees were ab le to attend dozens of  c lasses designed to 
expose them to va rious ca reers. Add itiona l ly, students were 
ab le to create a project based on new product or bus i ness 
dea .  
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Information Technology Department 

Department of Human Services 

Department of T ransportation 
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Executive Branch Agencies with T ransfer Authority 
t) 

Notwithstanding section 54-16-04, the director of the office of management and budget 
shall make transfers of funds between line items in section 1 of this Act forthe information 
technology department as may be requested by the chief information officer as 
determined necessary for the development and implementation of information 
technology projects. 

Notwithstanding section 54-16-04, the department of human services may transfer 
appropriation authority between line items within subdivisions 1, 2 and 3 of section 1 of 
this Act and between subdivisions 1 ,  2 ,  and 3 within section 1 of this Act for the biennium 
beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019. The department shall notify the office 
of management and budget and the legislative council of any transfer made pursuant to 
this section. 

The director of the department of transportation may transfer between the salaries and 
wages, operating , capital assets, and grants line items in section 1 of this Act when it 
is cost-effective for construction and maintenance of highways. The department of 
transportation shall notify the office of management and budget of any transfers made 
pursuant to this section. 



Indian Affairs Commission - Budget No. 316 
House Bi l l  No. 1 005 
Base Level Funding Changes 

FTE 
Position 

201 9-21 Biennium Base Level 4.00 

201 9-21 Ongoing Funding Changes 
Base payro l l  changes 
Salary increase 
Health insurance i ncrease 
Retirement contribution increase 
Reduces American Indian Business Office funding 
Total ongoing funding changes 0.00 

One-time funding items 
No one-time funding items 
Total one-time funding changes 0.00 

Total Chan�es to Base Level Fundin� 0.00 

2019-21 Total Funding 4.00 

Other Sections for Indian Affairs Commission - Budget No. 3 16  

Executive Budget Recommendation 

General  Other 
Fund Funds Total 

$1 , 1 1 2, 1 1 1  $0 $1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  

($20,462) ($20,462) 
34,087 34,087 
1 5, 1 1 5  1 5, 1 1 5  

4,444 4,444 
(35 , 1 44) (35, 144) 
($1 ,960) $0 ($1 ,960) 

$0 
$0 $0 $0 

($1 ,960) $0 ($1 ,960) 

$1 , 1 1 0, 1 51 $0 $1 , 1 1 0, 1 51 

Executive Budget Recommendation 
Appropriation - Additonal federal funds or other funds Section 2 would appropriate any additional i ncome from federal 

or other funds which may become available to the Indian Affairs 
Commission for the 201 9-21 bienn ium.  

Line item transfers Section 3 would authorize the Indian Affairs Commission to 
transfer up to 1 0  percent of the agency's total appropriation 
authority between line items during the 201 9-21 biennium. 

FTE 

-l-fB/a;5 
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House Version 

General Other 
Position Fund Funds 

4.00 $1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  $0 

($20,462) 
20,425 
1 7 ,848 

0.00 $17 ,81 1 $0 

0.00 $0 $0 

0 .00 $1 7,81 1 $0 

4.00 $1 , 1 29,922 $0 

House Version 

\ 

Total 
$1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  

($20,462) 
20,425 
1 7,848 

0 
0 

$1 7 ,81 1 

$0 
$0 

$1 7,81 1 

$1 , 1 29,922 

House Changes to Executive Budget 
Increase (Decrease) • Executive Bud9et 

FTE General Other 
Positions Fund Funds Total 

0.00 $0 $0 $0 

$0 
( 1 3,662) ( 1 3 ,662) 

2,733 2,733 
(4,444) (4 ,444) 
35, 1 44 35, 1 44 

0 .00 $1 9,771 $0 $1 9,771 

$0 
0 .00 $0 $0 $0 

0 .00 $1 9,771 $0 $1 9,771 

0.00 $1 9,771 $0 $1 9,771 

• 
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HOUSE BILL NO. 1 005 
LISTING OF PROPOSED CHANGES TO ENGROSSED VERSION 

Department -

Proposed funding changes : General 
FTE Fund 

Description 
1 Base payrol l  changes ($20,462) 

2 Salary increase $20 ,425 

3 Hea lth insurance increase $ 1 7 ,848 

4 Reduces American I nd ian Bus iness Office funding ($35 , 1 44) 

5 

Total proposed funding changes 

Other proposed changes : 

2 

3 

4 

($ 1 7 ,333) 

• jl-8/005 
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Prepared by the Leg is lative Counci l  staff A 
for 

February 4 ,  201 9 

Special 
Funds Total 

($20,462) 

$20,425 

$ 1 7 ,848 

($35 , 1 44) 

$0 ($1 7 ,333) 
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19.0193.01001 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
the House Appropriations - Human Resources 
Division Committee 

Fiscal No. 1 February 4, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1005 

Page 1, replace lines 9 through 14 with: 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Total general fund 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Renumber accordingly 

Base Level 
$848,407 

263,704 
$1,112,111 

4 .00 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

"Adjustments or 
Enhancements 

$17,811 
(35,144) 

($17,333) 
0.00 

House Bill No. 1005 - Indian Affairs Commission - House Action 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Base 
Budget 

$848,407 
263,704 

$1 , 1 1 2, 1 1 1  
0 

$1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  

4.00 

House 
Changes 

$1 7 ,8 1 1  
(35 , 1 44) 

($ 1 7 ,333) 
0 

($ 1 7 ,333) 

0.00 

House 
Version 

$866 ,21 8 
228,560 

$1 ,094,778 
0 

$1 ,094,778 

4.00 

Department 316 - Indian Affairs Commission - Detail of House Changes 

Reduces 
Funding for 

Adjusts Adds Funding the American 
Funding for for Salary and Indian 
Base Payroll Benefit Business 

Changes1 lncreases1 Office1 

Total House 
Changes 

Salaries and wages ($20,462) $38,273 $ 17 , 8 1 1  
Operating expenses ($35 , 1 44) (35 , 1 44) 

Total all funds ($20,462) $38,273 ($35 , 1 44) ($1 7 ,333) 
Less estimated income 0 0 0 0 
General fund ($20,462) $38,273 ($35 , 1 44) ($1 7,333) 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1 Funding is adjusted for base payrol l  changes. 

Appropriation 
$866,218 

228,560 
$1,094,778 

4. 00" 

2 The following funding is added for 201 9-2 1 biennium salary adjustments of 2 percent per year and increases in  
health insurance premiums from $1 ,241  to $ 1 ,427 per month : 

Salary increase 
Health insurance increase 
Total 

General Fund 
$20,425 

1 7,848 
$38 ,273 

3 Reduces funding for the American I ndian Business Office to provide a total of $64,856 . 

Page No. 1 19.0193.01001 



Prepared for the Senate Appropriations Committee 

Department 31 6 - Indian Affairs Commission 
House Bi l l  No. 1 005 

E xecut ive Bu d 1get C o mpar1so n to Prio r B' 1enmum ,ppro pr1a io ns A ' f  
FTE Positions General Fund Other Funds 

201 9-21 Executive Budget 4 .00 $ 1 , 1 1 0 , 1 51 $0 
201 7-1 9 Legislative Appropriations 4 .00 1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  0 
I ncrease (Decrease) 0 .00 ($ 1 ,960) $0 

On an d One-T ime General Fun d A 

Total 
$1 , 1 1 0 , 1 51 

1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  
($ 1 ,960) 

Ongoing General Fund 
Appropriation 

One-Time General 
Fund A ropriation 

Total General Fund 
A ro riation 

201 9-21 Executive Budget 
201 7- 1 9  Adjusted Legis lative Appropriations 
I ncrease Decrease 

$ 1 , 1 1 0 , 1 51 
1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  

$ 1 ,960 

Agency Funding 
$1 .20 -,--------,...,.....,.-,------------. 

FTE Positions 
6.00 

VI 

.2 

i 

$1 .00 

$0.80 

$0.60 

$0.40 

$0.20 

$0.00 
201 3-1 5 201 5-1 7 201 7-1 9 201 9-21 

• General F,und a Other Funds Executive 
Budget 

5.00 

4.00 

3.00 

2.00 

1 .00 

0 .00 

E f B d t C  xecu 1ve u 1ge o mpar1so n 

5.00 --

201 3-1 5 

t B 0 ase L 

5.00 --

$0 
0 

$0 

201 5-1 7 

eve 

4� -

201 7-1 9 

$1 , 1 1 0 , 1 51 
1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  

$ 1 ,960 

4.00 -

201 9-21 
Executive 

Budget 

General Fund Other Funds Total 
201 9-21 Executive Budget $ 1 , 1 1 0, 1 51 $0 $ 1 , 1 1 0, 1 51 
201 9-2 1 Base Level 1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  0 1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  
I ncrease (Decrease) ($1 ,960) $0 ($1 ,960) 

F irst Ho use Act ion 
Attached is a comparison worksheet detai l ing first house changes to base level funding and the executive budget. 

Execu tive Bu dget H ig hl ights 
(W ith F irs t Ho use Changes in  Bold) 

1 .  Adds funding for state employee salary and benefit increases, of 
wh ich $34,087 is  for salary increases, $ 1 5, 1 1 5  is for health 
insurance increases , and $4,444 is for retirement contribution 
increases . The House added funding for salary adjustments 
of 2 percent per year and increases in health insurance 
premiums from $1 , 241 to $1 ,427 per month. The House did 
not add funding for retirement contribution increases. 

2. Adjusts base payro l l  by increasing funding for the d i rectors' salary 
($34, 1 28) and red ucing other salaries and wages ($54,590) . 
(excludes changes to salaries , benefits , and health insurance 
noted above) 

General Fund 
$53,646 

($20,462) 

Other Funds 
$0 

$0 

Total 
$53,646 

($20,462) 

February 28, 201 9 



3. Reduces funding for the American I ndian Business Office ($35, 1 44) $0 ($35 , 1 44) 

Other Sect ions in Hou se B ill No. 1005 
There are no other sections in the b i l l .  

Cont inu ing Appropr iat ion s  
I ndian Affairs Commission printing fund - North Dakota Century Code Section 54-36-08 - Used to defray expenses incurred 
by the commission in producing and d istributing publ ications and educational materials . 

S ign if icant Au d it F in d ings 
There are no sign ificant audit findings for this agency. 

Major Relate d Leg i slat ion 
House Bill No. 1 3 1 3  - Amends Section 54-1 2-34, relating to the Criminal Justice I nformation sharing system , to require the 
Attorney General to implement a missing person repository for authorized users to include demographic data related to 
indigenous people. 

2 

• 

• 



Indian Affairs Commission - Budget No. 316 

House Bi l l  No. 1005 

Base Level Funding Changes 
Executive Budget Recommendation House Version 

FTE Genera l  Other FTE General Other 
Position Fund Funds Total Position Fund Funds Total 

201 9-21 Biennium Base Level 4,00 $ 1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  $0 $1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  4.00 $ 1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  $0 $ 1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  

201 9-21 Ongoing Funding Changes 
Base payroll changes ($20,462) ($20,462) ($20,462) ($20,462) 
Salary increase 34,087 34 ,087 20,425 20 ,425 
Health insurance increase 1 5 , 1 1 5  1 5 , 1 1 5  1 7 ,848 1 7,848 
Reti rement contribution increase 4,444 4,444 0 
Reduces American Ind ian Business Office funding (35, 1 44) (35 , 1 44) (35 , 1 44) (35 , 1 44) 
Total ongoing funding changes 0.00 ($1 ,960) $0 ($1 ,960) 0.00 ($1 7,333) $0 ($1 7 ,333) 

One-time funding items 
No one-time funding items $0 $0 
Total one-time funding changes 0 .00 $0 $0 $0 0 .00 $0 $0 $0 

Total Changes to Base Level Funding 0.00 ($1 , 960) $0 ($ 1 ,960) 0.00 ($1 7 ,333) $0 ($1 7, 333) 

201 9-21 Total Funding 4.00 $1 , 1 1 0 , 1 51 $0 $1 , 1 1 0 , 1 5 1 4.00 $ 1 ,094,778 $0 $ 1 , 094,778 

Other Sections for Indian Affairs Commission - Budget No. 31 6 
Executive Budget Recommendation House Version 

Appropriation - Add itonal  federal funds or other 
funds 

Section 2 would appropriate any additional income from No other sections included in the House vers ion .  

L ine item transfers 

federal or other funds which may become available to the 
Ind ian Affai rs Commission for the 201 9-2 1 b iennium. 

Section 3 would authorize the Indian Affa irs Commission to 
transfer up to 1 0  percent of the agency's total appropriation 
authority between l ine items during the 201 9-21 b ienn ium.  



Prepared by the Legislative Council staff 

Depar tmen t 316 - I n dian Affairs Commi s sion 

H istorical Appropriations I nformation 

Ongoing General Fun d Appropria tion s Since 2011-13 

Ongoing General Fund Appropriations {in Mil l ions) 
$1 .20 �-----------c-,-...,....,-----------, 

FTE Positions 
1 0.00 

8.00 

6.00 

4.00 

2 .00 

0 .00 

4.00 

5.00 5.00 
- -

4.� 4.00 - -$0.80 

$0.60 

$0.40 

$0.20 

$0.00 

201 1 -1 3  201 3-1 5 201 5-1 7 201 7-1 9 201 9-21 
Executive 

Budget 

201 1 -1 3  201 3-1 5 201 5-1 7 201 7-1 9 201 9-21 
Executive 

Budget 

201 1 -1 3  
Ongoing general  fund appropriat ions $822,878 
Increase (decrease) from previous b ienn ium N/A 

Percentage increase (decrease) from N/A 

previous bienn ium 
Cumulative percentage increase (decrease) N/A 

from 20 1 1 - 1 3  bienn ium 

201 3-1 5 201 5-1 7 201 7-1 9 
$1 ,027,558 $ 1 , 1 27 ,740 $ 1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  

$204,680 $ 1 00 , 1 82 ($1 5 ,629) 
24.9% 9 .7% 1 .4% 

24.9% 37.0% 35. 1 %  

Major Increa ses (Decreases)  i n  Ongoing General Fun d A ppropria tion s 
201 3-1 5 Biennium 

1 .  Added 1 Native American health system program administrator FTE position  
2 .  I ncreased funding for temporary employees' salaries 
3 .  Reduced operating expenses 

201 5-1 7 Biennium 
1 .  Add�d funding for desktop support services 
2 .  Added funding to transfer the North Dakota American I ndian Business Development Office from the 

Department of Commerce to the I ndian Affairs Commission 
3 .  Reduced operating expenses 

201 7-1 9 Biennium 
1 .  Removed 1 I nd ian education program admin istrator FTE position 
2. Restored funding for the Youth Leadersh ip Academy that was removed as a result  of the August 

201 6  general fund budget reductions 
201 9-21 Biennium (Executive Budget Recommendation) 

1 .  Adjusts base payro l l  by increasing funding for the d irector's salary ($34 , 1 28) and red ucing other 
salaries and wages ($54 ,590) . (excludes salaries , benefits and health insurance i ncreases) 

2 .  Reduces funding for the American I ndian Business Office 

201 9-21 
Executive 

Bud et 
$1 , 1 1 0 , 1 5 1  

($ 1 ,960) 
(0 .2%) 

34.9% 

$ 1 84,284 
$24 ,882 
($9 ,957) 

$ 1 2 ,000 
$1 00,000 

($3,831 )  

($1 09,850) 
$1 0 ,572 

($20,462) 

($35, 1 44) 

February 28, 201 9 



GOVERNOR'S RECOMMEN DATION FOR TH E 

IN DIAN AFFAIRS COMMISSION AS SUBMITTED BY THE 

OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AN D BUDG ET 

SECTION 1. APPROPRIATION. The funds provided in this section, or so much of the funds as may 
be necessary, are appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise 
appropriated, to the Indian affairs commission for the purpose of defraying the expenses of the Indian 
affairs commission, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021, as follows: 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Total general fund 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Base Level 
$848,407 

263,704 
$1,112,11 

4.00 

Adjustments or 
Enhancements 

$33,184 
(35,144) 
($1,960) 

(1.00) 

Appropriation 
$881,591 

228,560 
$1,110,151 

4.00 

SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION. In addition to the amounts appropriated to the Indian affairs 
commission in section 1 of this Act, there is appropriated any additional income from federal or other 
funds which may become available to the agency for the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending 
June 30, 2021. 

SECTION 3.  TRANSFER. Notwithstanding section 54-16-04, the agency may transfer between line 
items within section 1 of this Act up to ten percent of the total appropriation contained in section 1 during 
the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021. The agency shall notify the office of 
management and budget and the legislative council of any transfer made pursuant to this section. 

Governor's recommendation as submitted by the Office of Management and Budget 



• 

• 

• 

11 I Hf; 1005 
J.. - J-f -J, O I °t 

North Dakota Indian Affairs Commission 
Senate Appropriat ions Budget Hearing 

Senate App ropri at ions  Com mittee 
Cha i rman ,  Ray Ho lm berg 

North Dakota State Cap ita l ,  B ismarck N D  
Februa ry 28th,  2019 

M I  

Cha i rman  Ho lmberg a nd members of the Com mittee, my name  i s  Scott J .  Davis, I a m  a member 

of t he  Stand i ng  Rock S ioux Tri be and  a descendent of the Tu rt le  Mounta in  Band  of Ch ippewa 

and  I am p roud  to serve the great state of North Dakota as  the Execut ive D i rector of the North 

Dakota I nd i a n  Affa i rs Commission .  As Com missioner, I serve on  the  Governor's  Cab inet .  I am 

jo i ned today by staff members i n  p resent ing our testimony today. Tha n k  you for th is 

oppo rtun ity. 

It h a s  been a very bu sy b ien n i um to say the least, th i s  yea r the North Dakota I nd i a n  Affa i rs 

Com miss ion wi l l  com memorate its 70th yea r  as  a legis l atively authorized Com m ission .  The n i ne-

mem ber  Com miss ion is comprised of the Governor, the five N D  Tri ba l  Cha i rpersons and  fou r  at-

l a rge members a ppo i nted by the Governor, th ree of whom must be of N ative American 

descent .  The Com miss ion is  authorized to meet on a q u a rterly bas is, o r  at the behest of the 

governor. The work of the com miss ion is coord i nated and  adm i n istered by a five-member  staff. 

Statutory Authority 

North Dakota Centu ry Code Sect ions 54-36-03 to 54-36-09 . 
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Agency Descript ion 

The No rth  Da kota I n d i a n  Affa i rs Commiss ion  is  the l i a ison between the  executive b ranch and  

the five t ri ba l  n at ions  of  North Dakota .  Dut ies i nc lude coord i nat ion and  med iat ion service with 

tri b a l  n at ions  and  t he  state and its agencies regard ing  i nteragency com m u n icat ion, p rotoco l, 

and  j u r isd i ct iona l  i ssues .  Add it iona l ly, the agency works with tri ba l  governments, the i r  people 

and com m u n it ies to enhance capacity i n  worki ng with the  state of North  Dakota .  

The I nd i a n  Affa i rs Com miss ion is respons i b l e  for the  ma i ntenance and  pub l icat ion of severa l  

documents, i n c l ud i ng  but not l im ited to the  Statewide  D i rectory of America n  I nd i an  resou rces, 

and  h istorica l a nd  contempora ry informat ion and  research about North  Dakota 's American  

I nd i a n  c it izens .  Th is  past b ienn i um we he l ped produced the  N D  Tax I nformat ion for Native 

America n and  Tri b a l  Governments and the N D  Com m iss ion to Study Raci a l  Eth n i c  B ias in  the 

Cou rts .  These materi a l s  a re ava i l ab le  in  p ri nt and  for down load on  the Com m issions  website. 

Agency Mission Statement 

"The  I n d ia n  Affa i rs Commiss ion sha l l  have the  power to ass ist and  to mob i l i ze the  support of 

state and  federa l  agencies in assist ing I nd i an  i nd iv id ua l s  and  groups  in N D, especia l ly the five 

t ri ba l  cou nc i l s, as t hey seek to deve lop the i r  own goa ls, p roject p l ans  for ach ievi ng  those goa l s, 

and  im p lement i ng  those p la ns" . 
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• To i nvestigate any  phase of I nd i an  affa i rs and  to assemb le  and  make ava i l ab l e  the  facts 

n eeded by tri b a l , state, and  federa l  agencies to work effective ly together .  

• To ass ist t ri b a l, state, and  federa l  agencies i n  deve lop ing p rograms whereby I nd i a n  citizens 

may ach ieve a better  qua l ity of l ife . 

• To ass ist t ri b a l  groups  i n  deve lop ing increas ingly effective i n stitut ions of se lf-government .  

• To work for greater understand ing  and improved relat ionsh i ps between  I nd i a n s  and non­

I n d ia ns .  

• To seek i ncreased pa rt ic i pation by I n d ia n  cit i zens i n  loca l and  state affa i rs . 

• To confe r  with and  coord i nate offic ia ls and  agencies of other  governmenta l u n its and  

congressiona l  com mittees with regard to  I nd ia n  needs and  goa ls .  

• To encou rage and p ropose agreements and  accords between federa l ,  state, and loca l  

agencies and the severa l t ri ba l  governments, and, pu rsuant to chapter 54-40 .2, to ass ist in 

mon itori ng  and negot iat i ng agreements and accords when asked by an  affected tri be  . 
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The performance of the  North Dakota I nd i an  Affa i rs Com miss ion is p rem i sed upon the goa l s  of 

the  Governor  a nd  those pr iority issues a rt icu l ated by tri ba l  leaders .  

The efficacy of the  North Dakota I nd i an  Affa i rs Com miss ion Offices' efforts and its p rojects are 

conducted t h rough weekly meetings with the Governor's  office, as  we l l  a s  s ummative reviews 

as reported to the Governor in cab inet reports and N D  tr i ba l  leaders t h rough Com miss ion 

meeti ngs .  Most of the Com miss ion staff work is  based on  eithe r, legis lat ion, statutor i ly 

mandated i nvolvement ( representat ion on  the Triba l-State Relat ions I nter im Legis lat ive 

Com mittee for examp le), state regu latory req u i rements, specific requests made in Commission 

meet ings; o r  issues a ris ing out of State Agency or  t ri ba l  requests . 

My d i rect worki ng  re l at ionsh ip  with 20+ state agenc ies, 5 Tri ba l  Cha i rs a nd  Counci ls, the rap id 

growth of our state, h ave evo lved exponent i a l ly i n  the past 9+ yea rs .  Th is  growth has  forced my 

office to respond to n umerous  requests for partnersh i ps, appo intments to com mittees, 

emergency response i nc idents, and provide  state, tri ba l  and  federa l  test imony on po l i cy and 

law. The growth of work i n  the a reas of  economic  development/jobs, o i l/energy, cou rt/law 

systems, educat ion systems, taxat ion and  hea lth ca re systems h ave been and  wi l l  conti nue  to 

be the ma i n  focus  of our office. The perfo rmance and  accountab i l ity of my office requ i res me to 

conti n u a l ly track and  ma inta in the numerous issues and  projects estab l i shed by those 

pa rtnersh ips .  The l a rge n umber of agreements and com pacts made between the tribe and state 
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a re cha l l engi ng  a t  t imes, b u t  requ i re cons istent com m u n icat ion i n  o rder for t h em  to  be  

susta i n ab l e .  

American Ind ian Health Systems Administrator 

M r. Cha i rman  and  Members of the Comm ittee, the N D  I nd i an  Affa i rs Comm iss ion Office i s  the 

sma l l est state agency i n  ND and  has been for decades .  Over that t ime, the office has  rarely 

asked for add it io n a l  staff assistance. Two sess ions ago you afforded our office with I nd ian  

Hea lth  Systems Adm in i strator, for that we a re very t hankfu l .  The I nd i an  Hea lth Systems 

Ad m i n i st rator has  been part of va r ious hea lth ca re p rojects and  efforts .  Part ic ipate i n  ongo ing 

Med ica id Tri ba l  Consu ltation .  These meeti ngs happen  qua rter ly here i n  B isma rck to give the 

Tri bes i n format ion on  Med ica id system and  other  DHS related information .  

Work with Department of Human Services Med ica id d iv is ion t o  gather  meet ings a t  each Tri ba l  

Nat ion on  the  100% FMAP d iscussions .  Th is  i nc luded meetings to ta l k  about cha l l enges i n  

deve lop ing  coord i nated care agreements with non-native hea lth  p roviders i n  ND .  He ld  

meet i ngs w i th  I n d i a n  Hea lth Service leadersh i p  about perform ing  coord i nated ca re for Tri ba l  

pat ients. H ave ta l ked with Triba l  Leaders a bout how sha red savi ngs of ND Genera l  F u nds wou ld 

be  u sed i n  the i r  com mun it ies if a b i l l  is passed i n  the legis lative sess ion . 
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Attended and  p a rt ic ipated i n  d iscuss ions a round  ora l  hea lth ca re access i n  the tri ba l  

com m u n it ies .  Ta l ked with Triba l  Hea lth  leaders about the work h appen ing nat ionwide to 

add ress d isparit ies i n  ora l  hea lth for Triba l  members .  Had meetings with the Tri ba l  Leadersh ip  

i n  ND to hea r  the i r  concerns for not having  m id- leve l p roviders ava i l ab l e  i n  the i r  commun it ies .  

Had va r ious m eet i ngs to a lso ta l k  about hea lth  education a round  ora l  hea lth  with fam i l ies and  

k i d s  i n  the  school  systems. 

Hea lth  ca re data d i scuss ions cont inue  to be a b ig topic .  Have pa rt ic i pated i n  va r ious meetings 

a round  com m u n ity hea lth assessments. M any of these d iscuss ions a re a round  conso l idat ing 

d ifferent assessments so the Triba l  popu l at ion i s  not asked va rious  t imes for hea lth data . 

Behavio ra l Hea lth  issues conti nue  to be a n  i ssue i n  Tri ba l  commun it ies .  Part ic ipate i n  the 

Behaviora l  Hea lth  P l ann ing Counc i l  to ta l k  a bout d ifferent i n it iatives statewide .  Th is  group a l so 

IJ � 

works with the  Governor's Office to ta lk  about i n it iat ives and  possi b l e  legis l ative changes. Have 

been act ive with the  Justice and  Mental Hea lth  Task Force. Th is group  looks at the law 

enforcement and j ud ic ia l  s ide of addressi ng behaviora l  hea lth needs .  

Su ic ide P revent ion Task Force have been meet i ng qua rter ly to keep everyone  up to date on  

opportu n it ies for fund ing a co l l a boration .  H ave he l ped se lect qua l ified app l icants for grants to 

red uce su ic ides in N D  . 
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Judicia l  Systems Administrator 

Er ica Thunde r, a member of M HA Nation, graduate of Bott ineau H igh School , and  the 

U n iversity of North  Dakota graduate twice over-obta i n i ng  one undergrad degree : Bache lors i n  

Po l it ica l Sc ience; a nd  doctorate degrees: J u ri s  Doctorate and  Cert ificate i n  Federa l  I n d ian  Law, 

serves as J ud ic i a l  Systems Adm in istrator for N D IAC. 

Unde r  he r  ro le, she develops worki ng re lat ions with North  Dakota's Tri ba l , State, a nd  Federa l  

J u d ic i a l  Systems and  Law Enforcement Systems .  Th i s  has  i nc luded assist ing N D  Sup reme Cou rt 

J u st ice Tufte with Com mittee on Triba l  and  State Cou rt Affa i rs, to begi n imp rovements i n  data 

shar i ng  and  resou rce shar ing among the two Sovere igns .  She works extensively on legal 

research and lega l writ ing for N D IAC, as we l l  as B i l l  d rafting.  In her work with law enforcement, 

• she has  estab l ished month ly meet ings between ND IAC and  N D  Hwy Patro l ,  a long with Cu ltura l  

Lia ison for ND Hwy Patrol, Trooper Jenna C lawsen .  These meeti ngs have led to spearhead ing 

the  fi rst l aw enforcement MOU's between the State and  the Tri bes, wh ich ,  a lthough i n  the i r  

i n fancy, wi l l  lead to better support for pub l i c  safety. I n  her  capac ity, she is a lso assist ing in  

creat i ng  the fi rst Tri ba l-State Drug Task Force, i n  the Tu rt le Mounta ins .  

t4J 7 

She has  deve loped and  been i ntegra l to the writ ing of ch i l d  welfa re po l ic ies, wh i l e  deve lop ing 

worki ng  re lat ions with ch i l d  welfa re p rograms and issues .  Her  background  i n  Ch i ld  Welfa re has 

led he r  to assist i ng  in  re-writi ng the State and  Tribe's Tit le IV-E Agreements, wh ich had  not been 

u pdated s i nce 1983 . Aga in ,  though these agreements a re not comp leted, they have been 

i ntegra l to the worki ng  re lat ionsh ips between State and Tri be, ensuring p roper foster ca re 

• 
fund i ng  is  issued accord ing to Federa l  and State law. 
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• Erica has  a lso p l ayed a part i n  writ ing and reviewing the M HA DOT Licens ing Agreement /J 1 
between the State a nd  M HA, creat ing important petit ions used i n  school d i str icts where 

vu l ne rab l e  peop le  a re be ing underserved, med iated a p rom inent m iss ing person's case, O l iv ia 

Lone  Bea r, with m u lt i p le law enforcement j u ri sd ict ions, and a l so is  tasked with reviewi ng 

l a nguage re : taxat ion issues. 

Othe r  d ut ies of he rs i nc lude :  performing resea rch, po l i cy, and data co l l ect ion ,  a n a lysis and  

report ing, a nd  ass ist i ng with legis lat ive hear ings, com mittees, as  we l l  as  worki ng  with North 

Dakota tri ba l  co l leges on pub l i c  safety and lega l issues .  

She, a long  with the whole ND IAC team, with Com missioner  Davis 's lead, put together 

educat ion a l  p resentat ions for the North Dakota Ind ian Youth Leadersh ip  Academy, where they 

• a lso actively p l an ,  pa rt ic ipate, and  assist with the week- long event's activit ies .  She a l so has  

coord i n ated Law Enforcement and  Lega l pane l s  for N D IAC's Strengthen ing Government to 

• 

Government Re lat ions, a long with serving on the I nd i an  Law Sect ion . 

She cu rrent ly serves on  the State Committees i nc l ud i ng :  Dua l  Status Youth I n iti ative, 

Com mittee on Tri b a l  and  State Cou rt Affa i rs, P revent ion of Sexua l  Abuse of Ch i l d ren Task Force, 

Ch i l d ren 's  Behaviora l Hea lth Task Force, the STOP Com mittee, North Dakota Human  Traffick ing 

Com m iss ion,  and was appo inted to Governor Bu rgum's I nte rstate O i l  and  Gas  Com pact 

Com m iss ion,  among  others . 
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M r. Cha i rman  a nd  members of the committee, i n  the  2011 legis lat ive sess ion ou r  budget 

i nc l uded a n  app rop ri at ion of $60,000 to conti n ue  the  deve lopment and  p l ann i ng  of the ND  

I n d i a n  Youth Leade rsh i p  Academy. You w i l l  not i n  t h e  budget spreadsheet, we  d i d  have a n  

a l l otment t o  t h i s  amount. Th is  coming  J u ne  wi l l  ma rk t h e  10th a n n u a l  N D IYLA. T h e  I nd i an  Affa i rs 

Com miss ion office and  its p l ann i ng committee h ave made  a strong com m itment i n  making th is  

Academy an a n n u a l  event. We fee l  the pa rtnersh ips  with the ND State Ban k, the  ND Un iversity 

Systems, a nd  the  N D  Tri ba l  Co l l eges have made a h uge impact on nea rly 500 Nat ive American 

students .  We a re now witnessi ng many of our Academy students now attend i ng  tri ba l  co l l eges 

and  ou r  N D  co l l eges and  tak ing up vo l unteer leadersh i p  ro les with i n  the i r  comm u n it ies .  

• M r. Cha i rman  a nd  members of the committee, on  beha lf of the h und reds of students who 

part ic i pated in the  academy we hope you wi l l  support the conti n u at ion of th i s  va l u ab le 

p rogram .  

Contract Appropriations American Indian Business Development Office 

The America n I n d i a n  Busi ness Deve lopment Office contract appropriat ion is be ing moved from 

the Department of Commerce to the I nd i an  Affa i rs Com m iss ion .  

F o r  t h e  past 9 yea rs, t h e  North Dakota I n d i a n  Affa i rs Com miss ion ( ND IAC) has  been a strong 

pa rtner  with the  ND Dept .  of Commerce . Both offices h ave been ab le to e levate the  American 

I nd i a n  Bus i ness Deve lopment Office to another leve l .  I t h i n k  it is fa i r  to say, a l l  agree that a Fu l l  

Time  Emp loyee is N OT needed . We have contracted th i s  out for the past 10+ yea rs i n  the  sum 

of  100K. 
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Th rough the  leadersh i p  of the Executive Di rector of N D IAC we now have been ab le  to 

concentrate of i dent ify native owned bus inesses that exist with i n  North Dakota . We 

a lso h ave now been ab l e  to provide techn ica l  ass istance for n ative owned sta rtup  bus inesses 

a n d  a lso growing  those wel l-estab l i shed p rivate n ative owned bus inesses. 

We a lso h ave now estab l i shed the fi rst ever North Da kota I nd i a n  Bus iness A l l i ance, which 

members a re p rivate native owned bus inesses. We a l so have champ ioned Tri ba l  Bus iness 

Econom ic Su m m its and  a re making strides rega rd ing  Tri ba l  U n iform Commercia l  Codes. Th is 

wi l l  p rovide  an equ a l  p l ayi ng fie ld when it comes to fi l i ng  fi n anc ia l  and  busi ness tra nsact ions .  

Our n ext step  i s  to conti nue  our work with the Secreta ry of State i n  gett ing those transact ions 

e lectron ica l ly to fi l l i ng  systems. This wi l l  req u i re a Memorand u m  of Agreement between the 

Tri be  and the  State . 

We h ave a lso, he lped  co-create the North Dakota N ative Tou ri sm Al l i ance .  Th is  A l l i ance is 

gea red toward p l a nn ing, partner ing and creat ing a tourism destiny on each reservat ion . As we 

a l l  know, Tou ri sm i s  huge economic sector of our State .  It ou r  goa l  to bu i l d  u pon that with our  

Tri b a l  comm u n it ies wh ich  wi l l  he lp  estab l i sh  a stronger economy, jobs  and  bus inesses on the  

rese rvat ions . 
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Strengthening Government to Government Relations Conference ,; fl 
M r. Cha i rman ,  th i s  past J anua ry and December  of 2018, our  office hosted two conferences 

d i rected towards imp rovi ng Triba l ,  State and  Federa l  pa rtnersh ips .  Both two conferences had 

pa rt ic i pat ion attendance at  300 peop le .  I st rongly fee l  that  these two conferences strengthened 

a com m itment for a l l  government entit ies to work and  commun icate more effective ly and 

imp rove the  Govern ment to Government re lat ions for ou r  State and  Tribe .  

Transfer Authority 

M r. Cha i rman ,  o u r  office/agency fu l ly  the supports the a uthority to transfer between l i ne  

items  u p  to ten percent of  the tota l  app ropriat ion conta i ned i n  sect ion du ri ng  the b ienn i um 

begi n n i ng  J u ly 1 ,  2019, and end i ng  June  30, 2021 .  The  agency sha l l  not ify the office of 

management and  budget and the legisl ative cou nc i l  of any transfer made pu rsuant to th is 

sect io n .  

I n  c los i ng, I fee l  ou r  office a nd  my position have been very busy and  fee l  that we  as a staff have 

e levated the  state and  triba l  re lat ions to a new and  excit ing level, cons ideri ng  where we were 

at 2 yea rs ago. In com parison to other  states we a re the leader in how wel l  we work together 

with the  No rth Dakota Tri bes. It is our  comm itment to the state and to the tr ibes that our  office 

wi l l  cont i n u e  to work in a l l  a reas needed in fu lfi l l i ng  the good and strong govern ment to 

gove rn ment re lat ionsh ips we have here in North Dakota . 
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M r. Cha i rman, attached is the l atest budget/green sheet rega rd i ng  the cu rrent state of our  

a pp rop ri at ions .  I hope you wi l l  strongly cons ider  i n  keep ing the  base l evel, fund i ng  l eve ls as i s .  

M r. Cha i rman and members of  the comm ittee, th is  conc ludes my test imony. I w i l l  be happy to 

an swer any  q uest ions  you may have at th i s  t ime 
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GOVERNOR'S RECOMMENDATION FOR THE 

INDIAN AFFAIRS COMMISSION AS SUBMITTED BY THE 
OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET 
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SECTION 1 .  APPROPRIATION. The funds provided in this section, or so much of the funds as may 

be necessary. are appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund In the state treasury, not otherwise 
appropriated, to the Indian affairs commission for the purpose of defraying the expenses of the Indian 
affairs commission, for the biennium beginning July 1 ,  2019, and ending June 30, 2021 , as follows: 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Total general fund 
Full-time equivalent positions 

erse leyel 
848,407 
263,704 

$1 ,1 12, 1 1  
. 4.00 

Adjustments or 
Enhancr:meots 

33,184 
(35,144) 
($1 ,960) 

(1 .00) 

A,rooriation 
881 ,591 
228,560 

$1;1 10, 151 
4.00 

SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION. In addition to the amounts appropriated to the Indian affairs 
commission in section 1 of this Act, there is appr0priated any additional income from federal or other 
funds which may become available to the agency for the biennium beginning July 1 ,  201 9, and ending 
June 30, 2021 . 

SECTION 3. TRANSFER. Notwithstanding section 54-16-04, the agency may transfer between line 
items within section 1 of this Act up to ten percent of the total appropriation contained in section 1 during 
the biennium beginning July 1 ,  2019, and ending June 30, 2021 . The agency shall notify the office of 
management and budget and the legislative council of any transfer made pursuant to this section . 

Governor's recommendation as submitted by the Office of Management and Budget 
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Prepared for the Senate Appropriations Committee 

Department 31 6 - Indian Affairs Commission 
House Bill No. 1 005 

Executive Budaet ComDarison to Prior Biennium ADproprlations 
FTE Positions General Fund Other Funds 

201 9-21 Executive Budget 4.00 $1 , 1 1 0, 1 51 $0 
201 7-19 Legislative Appropriations 4.00 1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  0 
Increase (Decrease) 0.00 ($1 960) $0 

On and One-Time General Fund 

fJ 11/ 

Total 
$1 , 1 1 0, 1 51 

1 , 1 1 2, 1 1 1  
($1 960) 

Ongoing General Fund 
A ro riation 

One-Time General 
Fund A ro riatlon 

Total General Fund 
A ro rlatlon 

201 9-21 Executive Budget 
201 7- 19  Adjusted Legislative Appropriations 
Increase Decrease 

Agency Funding 

$1 , 1 1 0, 1 51 
1 , 1 12 , 1 1 1  

$1 ,960 

$1 .20 .,....------r:...,...,.-----------, 
FTE Positions 

6.00 

$1 .00 

� $0.80 
� 
:i $0.60 

5.00 

4.00 

3.00 

2.00 

1 .00 

0.00 

5.00 -- 5.00 --

$0 
0 

$0 

·� -

$1 , 1 1 0, 1 51 
1 1 1 2, 1 1 1  

$1 ,960 

4.00 --

$0.40 

$0.20 

$0.00 
2013-15 201 5-1 7 2017-19 2019-21 

2013-1 5 201 5-1 7 2017-19 2019-21 
aGeneral Fund DOther Funds 

E xecutive 

Executive 
Budget 

B d u 1aet C ompar son to B ase L eve 

Executive 
Budget 

General Fund Other Funds Total 
201 9-21 Executive Budget $1 , 1 1 0, 1 51 $0 $1 , 1 1 0, 1 51 
201 9-21 Base Level 1 1 1 2,1 1 1  0 1 , 1 12 , 1 1 1  
Increase (Decrease} {$1 ,960) $0 {$1 ,960) 

First House Action 
Attached is a comparison worksheet detail ing first house changes to base level funding and the executive budget. 

Executive Budget Highlights 
(With First House Changes in Bold) 

General Fund 
1 . Adds funding for state employee salary and benefit increases, of 

which $34,087 is for salary increases, $1 5,1 1 5  is for health 
insurance increases, and $4,444 is for retirement contribution 
increases. The House added funding for salary adjustments 
of 2 percent per year and Increases in health Insurance 
premiums from $1 ,241 to $1 ,427 per month. The House did 
not add funding for retirement contribution increases. 

2. Adjusts base payroll by increasing funding for the directors' salary 
($34, 1 28) and reducing other salaries and wages ($54,590). 
(excludes changes to salaries, benefits, and health insurance 
noted above) 

$53,646 

($20,462) 

Other Funds 
$0 

$0 

Total 
$53,646 

($20,462) 

February 28, 201 9  
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3. Reduces funding for the American Indian Business Office ($35, 1 44) 

Other Sections In  House BIii No. 1 005 
There are no other sections in the bil l .  

Continuing Appropriations 

ff I 
$0 

J/f; JD05 
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($35, 1 44) tJ /5 

Indian Affairs Commission printing fund - North Dakota Century Code Section 54-36-08 - Used to defray expenses incurred 
by the commission in producing and distributing publications and educational materials. 

Significant Audit Findings 
There are no significant audit findings for this agency. 

Major Related Legislation 
House Bill No. 1 31 3  - Amends Section 54-1 2-34, relating to the Criminal Justice Information sharing system, to require the 
Attorney General to implement a missing person repository for authorized users to include demographic data related to 
indigenous people . 

2 
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Indian Affairs Commission - Budget No. 31 6 

House Bill No. 1 005 

Base Level Funding Changes 
Executive Bud9et Recommendation House Version 

FTE General Other FTE General Other 
Position Fund Funds Total Position Fund Funds Total 

2019-21 Biennium Base Level 4.00 $1 , 1 1 2,1 1 1  $0 $1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  4.00 $1 , 1 1 2, 1 1 1  $0 $1 , 1 1 2, 1 1 1  

2019-21 Ongoing Funding Changes 
Base payroll changes ($20,462) ($20,462) ($20,462) ($20,462) 
Salary increase 34,087 34,087 20,425 20,425 
Health insurance increase 1 5, 1 1 5 1 5 , 1 1 5  1 7,848 1 7 , 848 
Retirement contribution increase 4,444 4,444 0 
Reduces American Indian Business Office funding !35

1
1 44} !35, 1 44) !35

1
144) !35

1
1 44} 

Total ongoing funding changes 0.00 ($1 ,960) $0 ($1 ,960) 0.00 ($1 7,333) $0 ($17 ,333) 

One-time funding items 
No one-time funding items $0 $0 
Total one-time funding changes 0.00 $0 $0 $0 0.00 $0 $0 $0 
Total Changes to Base Level Funding 0.00 ($1 ,960) $0 ($1 ,960) 0.00 ($1 7,333) $0 ($1 7 ,333) 

201 9-21 Total Funding 4.00 $1 , 1 1 0, 1 51 $0 $1 , 1 1 0 , 1 51 4.00 $1 ,094,778 $0 $1 ,094,778 

Other Sections for Indian Affairs Commission - Budget No. 316 

Executive Bud9et Recommendation House Version 
Appropriation - Additonal federal funds or other 
funds 

Section 2 would appropriate any additional income from No other sections included in the House version. 

line item transfers 

federal or other funds which may become available to the 
Indian Affairs Commission for the 201 9-2 1 biennium. 

Section 3 would authorize the Indian Affairs Commission to 
transfer up to 10 percent of the agency's total appropriation 
authority between line items during the 201 9-21 biennium. 

\l 
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Prepared by the Lqlslatlve Council staff 

Department 316 - Indian Affairs Commission 

Historical Appropriations Information 
Ongoing General Fund Appropriations Since 201 1-13 

Ongoing General Fund Appropriation• {In MHllons) 

$1.20 ---------=...,.,....-------, 
$1.00 . .+-----

FTE Positions 
10.00 

8.00 

6.00 

4.00 

2.00 

0.00 

- · 

4.00 

LOO LOO -
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- -
-

$0.80 

$0.60 

$0.40 

$0,.20 

$0.00 

201 1-13 . 2013-15 2015-1 .7 2017-19 2019-21 
Executive 
B� 

2011-13 2013-15 2015-17 2017-19 2019-21 
Executive 

Budget 

.. On 1olna General Fund � 

2011-13 2013-15 
Ongoing general fund appropriations $822,878 $1 ,027,558 
Increase (decrease) from previous biennium NIA $204,680 
Percentage increase (decrease) from NIA 24.9% 

previous biennium 
Cumulative percentage inaease (decrease) N/A 24.9% 

from 201 1 -1 3  biennium 

atlona 

2015-17 2017-19 
$1 , 127,740 $1 , 1 1 2,1 1 1  

$100,182 ($15,629) 
9.7% 1 .4% 

37.0% 35.1% 

Major Increases (Decreases) in Ongoing General Fund Appropriations 
2013-15 ai.nnlum 

1 .  Added 1 Native American health system program administrator FTE position 

2. Increased funding for temporary employees' salaries 

3. Reduced operating expenses 

2015-17 Biennium 

1 .  Added funding for desktop support services 

2. Added funding to transfer the North Dakota American Indian Business Development Office from the 
Department of Commerce to the Indian Affairs Commission 

3. Reduced open:1ting expenses 

2017-19 Biennium 

1. Removed 1 Indian education program administrator FTE position 

2. Restored funding for the Youth Leadership Academy that was removed as a result of the August 
2016 general fund budget reductions 

2019-21 Biennium (Executive Budget Recommendation) 

1 .  Adjusts base payroll by increasing funding for the director's salary ($34, 128) and reducing other 
salaries and wages ($54,590). (excludes salaries, benefits and health insurance increas•) 

2. Reduces funding for the American Indian Business Office 

2019-21 
Executive 

Budaat 
$1 , 1 1 0, 151 

($1 ,960) 
(0.2%) 

34.9% 

$184,284 

$24,882 

($9,957) 

$12,000 

$100,000 

($3,831 ) 

($109,850) 

$10,572 

($20,462} 

($35, 144) 

February 28, 2019 
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Tit le .  

P repared by the Leg islative Counc i l  staff for 
Senator Ho lmberg 

Fiscal No .2  March 28 ,  201 9 

PROPOSED AM ENDMENTS TO ENG ROSSED HOUSE B ILL NO.  1 005 

Page 1 ,  rep lace l i nes 1 1  through 1 3  with : 

"Salar ies and wages 
Operat ing expenses 
Total general  fund 

Renumber accord ing ly  

$848 ,407 
263,704 

$ 1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

House Bill No. 1 005 - Indian Affairs Commission - Senate Action 

Base House Senate 
Budget Version Changes 

Salaries and wages $848 ,407 $866 ,2 1 8  $3,473 
Operating expenses 263,704 228,560 

Total al l  funds $1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  $1 ,094,778 $3,473 
Less estimated income 0 0 0 

$2 1 ,284 
(35, 1 44) 

($ 1 3 ,860) 

Senate 
Version 

$869 ,691 
228,560 

$1 ,098,25 1 
0 

General fund $1 , 1 1 2 , 1 1 1  $1 ,094,778 

FTE 4.00 4.00 

$3,473 

0 .00 

$1 ,098,25 1 

4.00 

Department 31 6 - Indian Affairs Commission - Detail of Senate Changes 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts 
Funding for 

Salary 
lncreases1 

$3,473 

$3,473 
0 

$3,473 

0.00 

Total Senate 
Changes 

$3,473 

$3,473 
0 

$3,473 

0 .00 

$869 ,69 1  
228,560 

$ 1 ,098 ,25 1 " 

1 Fund ing is added to p rovide for employee salary increases of 2 percent on Ju ly 1 ,  201 9 ,  with a min imum monthly 
increase of $80, and an increase of 3 percent on July 1 ,  2020. The House provided funding for a salary increase of 
2 percent on J uly 1 ,  201 9 ,  and 2 percent on Ju ly 1 ,  2020 . 

Page No .  1 1 9 . 0 1 93 .02002 
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